Deloitte.

TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Singapore)
(Registration number: 196900130M)

AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES
Directors’ Report and Financial Statements

For The Financial Year Ended
31 December 2014



TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED
AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

Directors’ Report and Financial Statements

Contents

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GRP4-MGR/3013762-4xxxxxx-FS/PLKH/LHM/KWYM/FLCH/BL

10

11-13

14 -98



DIRECTORS’ REPORT

for the financial year ended 31 December 2014

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present teport to the members together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the emd statement of financial position and statement
of changes in equity of the Company for the finanggsr ended 31 December 2014.

1 Directors
The Directors of the Company in office at the dutthis report are:

Mr Ong Beng Kheong (Chairman)

Mr William Nursalim alias William Liem (Chief Exetive Officer)
Mr Choo Teow Huat Albert

Mr Chow Kok Kee

Mr David Lee Kay Tuan

Ms Michelle Liem Mei Fung

Mr Ng Siow How

2 Arrangements to enable directors to acquire benefits by gans of the acquisition of shares
and debentures

Neither at the end of the financial year nor at@mg during the financial year did there subsist any
arrangement whose object is to enable the DirectdredCompany to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares or debentures in the Compaagy other body corporate.

3 Directors’ interests in shares and debentures

The Directors of the Company holding office at émel of the financial year had no interest in the
share capital and debentures of the Company and relatedrations as recorded in the Register of
Directors’ Shareholdings kept by the Company under Sed#d of the Singapore Companies Act
except as follows:

Name of Directors and Companies  Shareholdings Registered In Shareholdings In Which Director Is
In Which Interests Are Held Name Of Director Deemed To Have An Interest
As at As at As at As at
1 January 31 December 1 January 31 December
2014 2014 2014 2014

The Company (Ordinary Shares)

Mr Ong Beng Kheong 2,200 2,200
Mr David Lee Kay Tuan 250,000 250,000
Ms Michelle Liem Mei Fung - - 546,383,8291 546,383,8291



Name of Directors and Companies  Shareholdings Registered In Shareholdings In Which Director Is

In Which Interests Are Held Name Of Director Deemed To Have An Interest
As at As at As at As at

1 January 31 December 1 January 31 December

2014 2014 2014 2014

SP Corporation Limited (Ordinary Shares)

Ms Michelle Liem Mei Fung - - 281,463,1971 281,463,1971

Notes

1 By virtue of interest in Nuri Holdings (S) PtedLt

By virtue of Section 7 of the Singapore Companies R,Michelle Liem Mei Fung is deemed to
have an interest in the Company and in all theeelabrporations of the Company.

There was no change in any of the above-mentioned Direattesests between the end of the
financial year and 21 January 2015.

During the financial year, 3,416,310 new ordinary sharély-paid were allotted pursuant to the
Tuan Sing Holdings Limited Scrip Dividend Scheme wehshares were issued at 31.3 cents per
share in lieu of cash for the first and final dividesfd.5 cent per share for the financial year ended
31 December 2013. Following the allotment, the fully pgdissued shares of the Company
increased to 1,176,155,916 ordinary shares.

Directors’ receipt and entitlement to contractual baefits

Since the beginning of the financial year, no Dibedtas received or become entitled to receive a
benefit, which is required to be disclosed under Sec@dri& of the Singapore Companies Act, by
reason of a contract made by the Company or a redatedration with the Director or with a firm of
which the Director is a member, or with a companwilnich the Director has a substantial financial
interest except for salaries, bonuses and other beagfisclosed in this report and notes 25 and 30
to the financial statements.

Share option

Option to take up unissued shares

During the financial year, there was no optiortake up unissued shares of the Company or any
corporation in the Group.

Unissued shares under option and option exercised

During the financial year, no shares of the Compamgny corporation in the Group were allotted
and issued by virtue of the exercise of option to takeinipsued shares of the Company or any
corporation of the Group.

At the end of the financial year, there were nssuned shares of the Company or any corporation in
the Group under option.



6 Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit Committee has been renamed to Audit and Rmkimittee as from 30 October 2014.
The Committee performed the functions specified ini@@@201B(5) of the Singapore Companies
Act and the Singapore Code of Corporate Governance.

The Audit and Risk Committee of the Company is cloaibg Mr Choo Teow Huat Albert and
includes Messrs Chow Kok Kee and David Lee Kay Talirgf whom are non-executive Directors
and the majority including the Chairman is independdrtie Audit and Risk Committee met four
times during the financial year ended 31 December a@ti4had reviewedhter alia, the following
with the executive Director, external and internal turdiof the Company where relevant:

(@) the external and internal audit plans; the scope andseof the internal audit procedures and
results of the internal auditors’ examination andwat#on of the Group’s systems of internal
accounting controls;

(b) the Group’s financial and operating results and acoaogipiolicies;

(c) the consolidated financial statements of the Graohog, statement of financial position and
statement of changes in equity of the Company befoeg submission to the Board of
Directors and the external auditors’ report on thosntial statements;

(d) the quarterly, half-yearly and annual announcememtthe results and financial positions of
the Company and the Group;

(e) the co-operation and assistance given by the managéoe Group’s external and internal
auditors; and

(H  the re-appointment of the external and internal atgl@bthe Group.

The Audit and Risk Committee has full access to axlthe co-operation of the management and
has been given the resources required for it to digehi#s functions properly. It also has full
discretion to invite any Director and executive @fido attend its meetings. The external and
internal auditors have unrestricted access to thet Andi Risk Committee.

The Audit and Risk Committee has recommended to thecfons the nomination of Deloitte &
Touche LLP for re-appointment as the external auddbitse Company at its forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.



7 External auditors

Deloitte & Touche LLP have expressed their williegs to accept re-appointment.

On Behalf of the Directors

Co (o L\,,

bmﬁ ............................

Chairman

William Nursalim alias William Liem
Chief Executive Officer

29 January 2015



STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS

In the opinion of the Directors, the consolidatedhmcial statements of the Group and the statewofent
financial position and statement of changes intgqofi the Company as set out on pages 8 to 98 are
drawn up so as to give a true and fair view ofdtage of affairs of the Group and of the Compangtas
31 December 2014, and of the results, changesuityeand cash flows of the Group and changes in
equity of the Company for the financial year thedexl and at the date of this statement, there are
reasonable grounds to believe that the Companywidlble to pay its debts when they fall due.

On Behalf of the Directors

o Lol
Ong Beng Kheong
Chairman

William Nursalim alias William Liem
Chief Executive Officer

29 January 2015
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Tel: +65 6224 8288
Fax: +65 6538 6166

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF www.deloitte.com/sg

TUAN SING HOLDINGS LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statssnesf Tuan Sing Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Groupijhich comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position of the Group and the statemehtfioancial position of the Company as at
31 December 2014, and the consolidated statememtobf or loss and other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement bfftass of the Group and the statement of changes i
equity of the Company for the year then ended,asdmmary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information, as set out on p&ges98.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statments

Management is responsible for the preparationnafritial statements that give a true and fair view i
accordance with the provisions of the Singapore @ones Act (the “Act”) and Singapore Financial
Reporting Standards, and for devising and maintgira system of internal accounting controls
sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance s$sdta are safeguarded against loss from unauttiorise
use or disposition; and transactions are propertjiaised and that they are recorded as necessary t
permit the preparation of true and fair profit dnds accounts and balance sheets and to maintain
accountability of assets.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on ¢héimancial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Singapaaedairds on Auditing. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan amfbpe the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetabou
whether the financial statements are free from nataisstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtaidiievidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selectpend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatemehiedinancial statements, whether due to frauer@r.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor a@erssiinternal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of financial statements that give a &ind fair view in order to design audit proceduhes

are appropriate in the circumstances, but not@purpose of expressing an opinion on the effecéss

of the entity’s internal control. An audit also lindes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accowtimgates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the financial stateimient

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtamedfficient and appropriate to provide a basers f

our audit opinion.
AR
N7
-6-

Deloitte & Touche LLP (Unique Entity No. TO8LLO721A) is an accounting limited liability partnership registered in Singapore OFFICIAL PROFESSIONAL
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Deloitte.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetsef the Group and the statement of financialtfmwsi
and statement of changes in equity of the Compaeaypeoperly drawn up in accordance with the
provisions of the Act and Singapore Financial RepgrStandards so as to give a true and fair view o
the state of affairs of the Group and of the Comgsat 31 December 2014 and of the results, change
in equity and cash flows of the Group and changesjuity of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
In our opinion, the accounting and other recordsired by the Act to be kept by the Company and by

those subsidiaries incorporated in Singapore othhve are the auditors have been properly kept in
accordance with the provisions of the Act.

Pl + Toudesr 2P

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

29 January 2015

OFFICIAL PROFESSIONAL
SERVICES PARTNER



STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2014

Assets

Current assets

Cash and bank balances
Trade and other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries
Inventories

Development properties

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Investment properties

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in equity accounted investees
Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities

Loans and borrowings
Trade and other payables
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Income tax payable

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Loans and borrowings
Deferred tax liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
Total non-current liabilities

Capital, reserves and non-controlling
interests

Share capital

Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Note

11
12
17

13
14
15

13
17

18
19

Group Company
2014 2013 2014 2013
$'000 $'000 $000 $000
252,270 276,872 356 298
87,420 62,262 112 50
- - 366,313 300,334
4,487 4,090 - -
414,153 404,285 - -
758,330 747,509 366,781 300,682
397,886 3,504 - -
1,082,932 824,125 498 498
- - 574,302 584,380
62,981 208,159 - -
4,179 - - -
14 14 - -
1,547,992 1,035,802 574,800 584,878
2,306,322 1,783,311 941,581 885,560
195,347 150,052 - -
107,134 79,675 15,693 21,934
- - 322,278 320,734
5,830 3,284 52 217
308,311 233,011 338,023 342,885
1,149,525 767,604 79,275 -
35,016 23,491 - -
423 - - -
1,184,964 791,095 79,275 -
169,260 168,190 169,260 168,190
633,658 581,491 355,023 374,485
802,918 749,681 524,283 542,675
10,129 9,524 - -
813,047 759,205 524,283 542,675
2,306,322 1,783,311 941,581 885,560

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the fiahstatements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the financial year ended 31 December 2014

Group
Note 2014 2013
$000 $000
Revenue 21 354,76! 302,273
Cost of sales (286,139) (251,003)
Gross profit 68,626 51,270
Other operating income 29,177 5,546
Distribution costs (4,230) (16,986)
Administrative expenses (16,202) (15,866)
Other operating expenses (23,426) (4,114)
Share of results of equity accounted investees 12 19,985 14,757
Finance income 22 4,760 5,018
Finance costs 23 (9,186 (4,080)
Profit before tax and fair value adjustments 69,504 35,545
Fair value adjustments 24 6,469 27,224
Profit before tax 25 75,973 62,769
Income tax expenses 26 (14,387) (9,715)
Profit for the year 61,586 53,054
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequentprofit or los:
Revaluation of property 28 - 5,630
Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of equitpunted investees 28 2,17 (6,000)
Income tax relating to components of other comprehemsoome that will
not be reclassified subsequently 28 (276) (127)
1,89 (497)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profiss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operatio 28 (7,020) (9,032)
Share of other comprehensive income of equity a¢ediunvestees 28 2,48¢ 2,390
Income tax relating to components of other comprehemsoome that may
be reclassified subsequently 28 (316) (510)
(4,847 (7,152)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, net of tax 28 (2,950) (7,649)
Total comprehensive income for the year 58,636 45,405
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company 61,169 52,000
Non-controlling interests 417 1,054
61,586 53,054
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 58,031 44,213
Non-controlling interests 605 1,192
58,636 45,405
Basic and diluted earnings per share (in cents)
Excluding fair value adjustments 27 4.7 2.4
Including fair value adjustments 27 5.2 4.5

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the fiahstatements.



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the financial year ended 31 December 2014

Note

Operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustments foi
Fair valu¢ gair 24
Share of results of equity accounted inve: 12
Depreciation of property, plant and equipmr 9
Allowance for inventory obsolescence, 7
(Write-back of allowance)/llowance for doubtful trad

and other receivables, 6

Plant and equipment written « 2t
Netloss(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipr 2t
Negative goodwill on acquisitic 2¢
Adjustment arising from selective capital reductibamassocia 12
Finance incorr 22
Finance cos

Operating cash flows before movements in working cétal
Development properties less progressive billings vabé
Inventorie:

Trade and other receivak
Trade and other payab

Cash generated from operation
Interest receive
Income tax pai

Net cash from operating activitie:

Investing activities
Additions to property, plant and equipn 9
Disposal of property, plant and equipn
Additions to investment properti
Acquisition of subsidiar 2¢
Distribution receive(

Net cash used in investing activitie

Financing activities
Repayment of finance lease obligati
Proceeds from loans and borrowi
Repayment of loans and borrowi
Interest pai
Bank deposits pledged as securities for bank fae
Dividend paid to shareholdt
Dividend paid to nc-controlling interes
Net cash from financing activitie:

Net ( decreasejincrease in cash and cash equivaler
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of &
Foreign currency translation adjustm

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the ye 5

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the fiahstatements.
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Group
2014 2013
$000 $000
75,97¢ 62,76¢
(6,469) (27,224
(19,985) (14,757
1,07¢ 69¢
75 2C
(1) 11¢
18 2
3 (1,767
(26,£24) (802
13¢€ -
(4,760) (5,018
9,186 4,08(
28,330 18,12:
(4,630 44,28¢
207 (193
(7,696) 8,89¢
(3,054) 7,02¢
13157 78,13¢
2,701 1,90¢
(2,169) (6,863
13,689 73,18.
(831) (679
- 2,13¢
(11,068 (11,297
(102,377) (170,868
8,670 3,507
(105,546) (177,209
2 (23)
202,498 374,66!
(115,677 (192,337
(16,157 (11,553
95 (59,527
(4,794) (2,161
- (4,600
65,96 104,46
(25,894) 44C
212,621 207,07
682 5,10¢
187,41 212,62




STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the financial year ended 31 December 2014

Attributable
Foreign to
currency Asset Other owners Non-
Share translation revaluation capital Revenue of the controlling
Note capital account reserve reserves’ reserve Company interests Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Group
At 1 January 2014 168,190 (11,384) 76,909 99,381 6485 749,681 9,524 759,205
Total comprehensive income for
the year
Profit for the year - - - - 61,169 61,169 417 61,586
Exchange differences on translatio28 - (7,208) - - - (7,208) 188 (7,020
of foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive 28 - - 2,173 2,489 - 4,662 - 4,662
income of equity accounted
investees
Income tax adjustments relating to 28 - - (276) (316) - (592) - (592)
other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive (loss)/income - (7,208) 1,897 2,173 - (3,138) 188 (2,950)
for the year, net of tax
Total - (7,208) 1,897 2,173 61,169 58,031 605 58,636
Transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity
Transfer from revenue reserve to - - - 8,781 (8,781) - - -
other capital reserves
Issue of shares 18 1,070 - - - - 1,070 - 1,07Q
under the Scrip Dividend Scheme
Dividend paid to shareholders
- Cash 20 - - - - (4,794) (4,794) - (4,794
- Share 20 - - - - (1,070 (1,070) - (1,070
Total 1,070 - - 8,781 (14,645) (4,794) - (4,794)
At 31 December 2014 169,260 (18,592) 78,806 110,335463,109 802,918 10,129 813,047

# Details of “Other capital reserves” are disclosedriote 19.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the fiahstatements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (cont'd)

for the financial year ended 31 December 2013

Attributable
Foreign to
currency Asset Other owners Non-
Share translation revaluation capital  Revenue of the controlling
Note capital account reserve reserves’ reserve Company interests Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Group
At 1 January 2013 164,545 (2,214) 77,573 96,775 370,950 707,629 12,932 720,561
Total comprehensive income
for the year
Profit for the year - - - - 52,000 52,000 1,054 53,054
Exchange differences on 28 - (9,216) - - - (9,216) 138 (9,078),
translation of foreign
operations
Exchange differencegalised or 28 - 46 - - - 46 - 46
disposal
Asset revaluation reserve realised - (167) 167 - - -
Share of other comprehensive 28 - - (6,000) 2,390 - (3,610) - (3,610)
income of equity accounted
investees
Revaluation of property 28 - - 5,630 - - 5,630 - 5,630
Income tax adjustments relating28 - - (127) (510) - (637) - (637)
to other comprehensive
income
Other comprehensive - (9,170) (664) 1,880 167 (7,787) 138 (7,649)
(loss)/income for the year, net
of tax
Total - (9,170) (664) 1,880 52,167 44,213 1,192 45,405
Transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity
- - - 726 (726) - - -
Transfer from revenue reserve to
other capital reserves
Issue of shares 18 3,645 - - - - 3,645 - 3,645
under the Scrip Dividend
Scheme
Dividend paid to shareholders
- Cash 20 - - - - (2,161) (2,161) - (2,161)
- Share 2( - - - - (3,645) (3,645) - (3,645)
Dividend to non-controlling - - - - - - (4,600) (4,600
interests
Total 3,645 - - 726 (6,532) (2,161) (4,600) (6,761)
At 31 December 2013 168,190 (11,384) 76,909 99,381 416,585 749,681 9,524 759,205

# Details of “Other capital reserves” are disclosed in né

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the fiahstatements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (cont'd)

for the financial year ended 31 December 2014

Other
Share capital Revenue
Note capital reserve’ reserve Total

$000 $000 $000 $'000
Company
At 1 January 2014 168,190 101,264 273,221 542,675
Profit for the year, representing total comprehensie - - (13,598) (13,598)

income for the year

Transactions with owners, recognised directly in egjty
Issue of shares under the Scrip Dividend Scheme 18 1,070 - - 1,070
Dividend paid to shareholders

- Cash 20 - - (4,794) (4,794)

- Share 20 - - (1,070) (1,070)
Total 1,070 - (5,864) (4,794)
At 31 December 2014 169,260 101,264 253,759 524,283
At 1 January 2013 164,545 101,264 190,648 456,457
Profit for the year, representing total comprehensie - - 88,379 88,379

income for the year
Transactions with owners, recognised directly in egjty
Issue of shares under the Scrip Dividend Scheme 18 645 3, - - 3,645
Dividend paid to shareholders

- Cash 20 - - (2,161) (2,161)

- Share 20 - - (3,645) (3,645)
Total 3,645 - (5,806) (2,161)
At 31 December 2013 168,190 101,264 273,221 542,675

# Details of “Other capital reserves” are disclosed in né

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the fiahstatements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2014

1 General

Tuan Sing Holdings Limited (Registration number: 196900130Mjné®rporated in the
Republic of Singapore with its principal place of business ragistered office at 9 Oxley
Rise, #03-02 The Oxley, Singapore 238697. The Company is listdtedpirigapore Stock
Exchange. The financial statements are expressedga&ire dollars.

The principal activity of the Company is that of investmentlimgl. The principal activities of
its significant subsidiaries and associates are disciosedte 34 and note 35 to the financial
statements. There have been no significant changes mathre of these activities during the
financial year.

The consolidated financial statements of the Grang statement of financial position and
statement of changes in equity of the Company fory#ee ended 31 December 2014 were
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on P8aky 2015.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(&) Basis of accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in awoedyith the historical cost basis
except as disclosed in the accounting policies belodaasdrawn up in accordance with
the provisions of the Singapore Companies Act andy@iore Financial Reporting
Standards (“FRS").

Historical cost is generally based on the fair vaitithe consideration given in exchange
for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received tosselsset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participaintseameasurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimasadg another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liabilitye Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability which nargarticipants would take into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurenderte. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidataddial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transattmnare within the scope of FRS 102
Share-based Paymemgasing transactions that are within the scogeR$ 17Leasesand
measurements that have some similarities to féirevhut are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in FRSIAventoriesor value in use in FRS 3fpairment of Assets

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, faalue measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inpute fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to tihedéue measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

= Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in actawkets for identical assets
or liabilities that the entity can access at thesueament date;

= Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices iedlwdthin Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability, eitheeatly or indirectly; and

= Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assethilitiia

-14 -



(b)

()

Adoption of new and revised Standards

On 1 January 2014, the Group adopted all the new and revisedaRB 8 erpretations
of FRS (“INT FRS”) that are effective from that dated relevant to its operations.

The adoption of these new/revised FRSs and INT FRRbsot result in any substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and has aterial effect on the amounts
reported for the current or prior years except adatied below:

FRS 112 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

FRS 112 requires an entity to provide more extensiveodisids regarding the nature of
and risks associated with its interest in subsieaaind associates.

Other than the additional disclosures, the applinadfdFRS 112 has not had any material
impact on the amounts recognised in the consolidataddial statements.

Standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of these financialestsnts, the following new and revised
FRSs that are relevant to the Group were issuedobeffiective:

* Amendments to FRS 19 (2011) Defined Benefit Plans: Emplmy#gbutions

* Improvements to Financial Reporting Standards (January 2014)

* Improvements to Financial Reporting Standards (February 2014)

* Amendments to FRS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financiah&ats

* Amendments to FRS 16 and FRS 38 Clarification of Acceptslgithods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

* FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

* Improvements to FRSs (November 2014)

Consequential amendments were also made to variondastis as a result of these
new/revised standards.

FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

FRS 115 was issued which establishes a single comprehensdel for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts withausrs. FRS 115 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including FRR&8enueFRS 11Construction
Contractsand the related Interpretations when it becomestiftec

The core principle of FRS 115 is that an entity shoeltbgnise revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customeran amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be edtiiteexchange for those goods or
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces &p-approach to revenue recognition:

» Step 1: identify the contracts with a customer
» Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in thetrean
» Step 3: Determine the transaction price

» Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the perfogeaobligations in the
contract.

» Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entitgifiesti a performance
obligation.

-15-



(d)

Under FRS 115, an entity recognises revenue when aperioe obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when “control” of the goods or services undedyithe particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. In addjtextensive disclosures are required by
FRS 115.

FRS 115 will take effect from financial year beginningasrafter 1 January 2017, with
retrospective application required.

The Group is currently assessing the effects of ERSIn the period of initial adoption.

Other than FRS 115, management has considered ahdhis view that the adoption of
the amendments and improvements to FRSs that are iaswsddate of authorisation of
these financial statements but effective only in fitperiods will not have a material
impact on the financial statements in the periodheif tinitial adoption.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporaditiancial statements of the Company
and entities (including structured entities) congwlby the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the company:

* Has power over the investee;

* Is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns ftermvolvement with the investee;
and

» Has the ability to use its power to affect its returns

The Company reassesses whether or not it contrats/astee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or moreedhtiee elements of control listed above.

When the company has less than a majority of thmg/aights of an investee, it has
power over the investee when the voting rights are serffi¢o give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investeelaterally. The company considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whathet the company’s voting rights
in an investee are sufficient to give it power, inahggdi-

* The size of the company's holding of voting rightdative to the size and
dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders;

* Potential voting rights held by the company, otheevalders or other parties;

* Rights arising from other contractual arrangemeants;

* Any additional facts and circumstances that inditaa the company has, or does
not have, the current ability to direct the relevawtivities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting pattetrrevious shareholders’
meetings

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Compabtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses cohttbe subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or dispbskeding the year are included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss atieer comprehensive income from the
date the Company gains control until the date whenGbmpany ceases to control the
subsidiary. When necessary, adjustments are madietdinancial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies ie kmth the Group’s accounting policies.
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Profit or loss and each component of other comprehemstoene are attributed to the
owners of the company and to the non-controllingr@sts. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the mamy and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controliimgrests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subgsithat do not result in the Group
losing control over the subsidiaries are accounteddgcequity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-cointgolhterests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the slidnses. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interests are aefbsind the fair value of the

consideration paid or received is recognised direéatquity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gaioss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) dwegate of the fair value of the

consideration received and the fair value of any methiinterest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), katilities of the subsidiary and any

non-controlling interests. All amounts previously agwised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the subsidiary are accounte@daf the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsydi@e. reclassified to profit or loss or

transferred to another category of equity as spdctifiermitted by applicable FRSs). The
fair value of any investment retained in the formebsidiary at the date when control is
lost is regarded as the fair value on initial rectignifor subsequent accounting under
FRS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measemerar, when applicable, the

cost on initial recognition of an investment in @s@ciate or a joint venture.

In the Company’s financial statements, investmemtsuibsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures are carried at cost less any impairmenteirretoverable value that has been
recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are aambuiar using the acquisition
method. The consideration for each acquisition issored at the aggregate of the
acquisition date fair values of assets given, liagdiincurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree, and equity interests issueldeb@toup in exchange for control of
the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recegrniis profit or loss as incurred.

Where applicable, the consideration for the acquisitimudes any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangemeasured at its acquisition-date
fair value. Subsequent changes in such fair valuesadpested against the cost of
acquisition where they qualify as measurement perdydsaments (see below). The
subsequent accounting for changes in the fair valtiseafontingent consideration that do
not qualify as measurement period adjustments depemdshow the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideratit is classified as equity is not re-
measured at subsequent reporting dates and its subisegti@&ment is accounted for
within equity. Contingent consideration that is diéext as an asset or a liability is re-
measured at subsequent reporting dates in accord&hceR® 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement, or FRS 37 Provisiongptitgent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the correfipgrgain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss.
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Where a business combination is achieved in stage$Gtoup’s previously held interests
in the acquired entity are re-measured to fair vatu@e acquisition date (i.e. the date the
Group attains control) and the resulting gain os,lifsany, is recognised in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree pterthe acquisition date that have
previously been recognised in other comprehensive incoeeealassified to profit or
loss, where such treatment would be appropriataifititerest were disposed of.

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities andtiogent liabilities that meet the
conditions for recognition under the FRS are recognaedheir fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

» deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilitiesassets related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognised and measured in accerdaih FRS 12 Income
Taxes and FRS 19 Employee Benefits respectively;

» liabilities or equity instruments related to sharegdagayment transactions of the
acquiree or the replacement of an acquiree’s sharelbpagment awards
transactions with share-based payment awards tt@orss of the acquirer in
accordance with the method in FRS 102 Share-basaddpat the acquisition
date; and

» assets (or disposal groups) that are classified ldsfdresale in accordance with
FRS 105 Non-current Asset Held for Sale and Disnaetl Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownergfiterests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets enetfent of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-comgplhterests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiableassets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction b&diser types of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value or, when appdicablthe basis specified in another
FRS.

If the initial accounting for a business combinatisnincomplete by the end of the
reporting period in which the combination occurs, tlieup reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplet&€hose provisional amounts are
adjusted during the measurement period (see belowjditional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained alfactis and circumstances that existed
as of the acquisition date that, if known, would haffected the amounts recognised as of
that date.

The measurement period is the period from the daseaiisition to the date the Group
obtains complete information about facts and circunostarthat existed as of the
acquisition date, and is subject to a maximum of @ae from acquisition date.

The policy described above is applied to all business catibins that take place on or
after 1 January 2010.

Associates and joint venture (equity accounted investees)

Associates are those entities over which the Ghagpsignificant influence. Influence is
the power to participate in the financial and opegatiecisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.
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Joint ventures are joint arrangement whereby theepattiat have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the goangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an agemment, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unansrnconsent of the parties sharing
control.

The results of and assets and liabilities of assx@mnd joint ventures are incorporated in
these consolidated financial statements using tpgtye method of accounting, except
when the investment, or a portion thereof, is clabifis held for sale, in which case it is
accounted for in accordance with FRS 1M6n-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations

Under the equity method, an investment in an assooiage joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of fimdnposition at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of thatpoofloss and other comprehensive
income of the associates or joint ventures. WhenGhaup’s share of losses of an
associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’sesttén that associate or joint venture
(which includes any long-term interests that, in safxs#, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate or joint venture), theu@rdiscontinues recognising its share
of further losses. Additional losses are recognigdy  the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or madgnments on behalf of the associates or
joint ventures.

An investment in an associate or a joint ventur@ounted for using the equity method
from the date on which the investee becomes an iagsoor a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate ofird j@nture, any excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s share of the net faiuwabf the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwilijch is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Groupésesbf the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost mfestment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the périn which the investment is acquired.
[note 2(h)].

The requirements of FRS 39 are applied to determineheshétis necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s inmest in an associate or a joint
venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amounthefinvestment (including
goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance VRS 36lmpairment of Assetas a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount ¢ha@helue in use and fair value less
costs to sell) with its carrying amount, any impaintness recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal at impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with FRS 36 to the extent that the recole@mount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity methmd the date when the investment
ceases to be an associate or a joint venture, or thhanvestment is classified as held for
sale. When the Group retains an interest in thedorassociate or joint venture and the
retained interest is a financial asset, the Grougsomes the retained interest at fair value
at that date and the fair value is regarded asaitsvilue on initial recognition in
accordance with FRS 39. The difference betweenahging amount of the associate or
joint venture at the date the equity method was disesed, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposirgpairt interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gaitoss on disposal of the associate or
joint venture. In addition, the Group accountsdframounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that assorgjoint venture on the same basis
as would be required if that associate or joint venhaw directly disposed of the related
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assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or lgzeviously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that associate or joint ventavddvbe reclassified to profit or
loss on the disposal of the related assets or tiabilithe Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassificatexjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.

The Group continues to use the equity method when agstment in an associate
becomes an investment in a joint venture or an inverstin a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasaotémé&ir value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in aosc@ass or a joint venture but the
Group continues to use the equity method, the Groupsssfies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previouslynb@eognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interéshat gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal eftblated assets or liabilities.

Where the group entity transacts with an assoc&jeint venture of the Group, profits
and losses resulting from the transactions witrais®ciate or joint venture are recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements d@althe extent of interests in the
associate or joint venture that are not relatetiéd3roup.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Functional and presentation currency

The individual financial statements of each grouftyeate measured and presented in the
currency of the primary economic environment in whibk entity operates (i.e. its
functional currency). The consolidated financishtaments of the Group and the
statement of financial position and statement oingka in equity of the Company are
presented in Singapore dollar which is the functianmtency of the Company and the
presentation currency for the consolidated findrst&ements.

Foreign currency transactions

In preparing the financial statements of the indigidentities, transactions in currencies
other than the entity’s functional currency are rded at the rate of exchange prevailing
on the date of the transaction. At the end of eagorting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslaidtia functional currency at the rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Nometary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retraatslat the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary itraisare measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not netfated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of taonéems, and on retranslation of
monetary items are included in profit or loss for pleeiod. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carriethia value are included in profit or
loss for the period except for differences arisingttom retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are néseg in other comprehensive income.
For such non-monetary items, any exchange component ofg#ia or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Exchange differences on foreign currency borrowimigsting to assets under construction

for future productive use, are included in the cosho$e assets when they are regarded as
an adjustment to interest costs on those foreigreiecyrborrowings.

-20-



(f)

Exchange differences on transactions entered intorder to hedge certain foreign
currency risks are described in the hedge accountirggsdelow [note 2(f)].

Foreign currency translation

For the purpose of presenting consolidated finasta@é¢ments, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations (including comparative® expressed in Singapore
dollars using exchange rates prevailing at the entheofeporting period. Income and
expense items (including comparatives) are translatibe alverage exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuated significalotling that period, in which case the
exchange rates at the date of the transactions ade Egehange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income acdmalated in a separate
component of equity under the header of foreign currgmaalation account.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a dispok#éhe Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of oonbver a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, loss of joint control over a jowenture that includes a foreign
operation, or loss of significant influence over asoagte that includes a foreign
operation), all of the accumulated exchange differengesespect of that operation
attributable to the Group are reclassified to prafitogs. Any exchange differences that
have previously been attributed to non-controllingreges are derecognised, but they are
not reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of partial disposal (i.e. no loss otradhof a subsidiary that includes a foreign
operation, the proportionate share of accumulated egeltifferences are re-attributed to
non-controlling interests and are not recognised ofitpor loss. For all other partial
disposals (i.e. of associates or joint ventures tlmtnot result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proporiate share of accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on theugsition of a foreign operation are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreignadjmer and translated at the closing rate.

Net investment in foreign operations

On consolidation, exchange differences arising ftbentranslation of the net investment
in foreign entities (including monetary items that,smbstance, form part of the net
investment in foreign entities), and of borrowings amttier currency instruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are reabgnisther comprehensive income
and accumulated in a separate component of equity umeléretider of foreign currency
translation account.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are reisgd on the Group’s statement of

financial position when the Group becomes a party toctiméractual provisions of the
instrument.
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Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calmgahe amortised cost of a financial
instrument and of allocating interest income or expemeer the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactlgalisits estimated future cash receipts or
payments (including all fees on points paid or receivid form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and ofimemiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial instrument, or whererappate, a shorter period. Income
and expense is recognised on an effective interest fmsdebt instruments other than
those financial instruments “at fair value throughfipay loss”.

Financial assets

All financial assets are recognised and de-recogmisedtrade date where the purchase or
sale of an investment is under a contract whosesteeqguire delivery of the investment
within the timeframe established by the market covedtrand are initially measured at
fair value plus transaction costs, except for thosentiral assets classified as at fair value
through profit or loss which are initially measuegdair value.

Financial assets are classified into the followipgcified categories: financial assets “at
fair value through profit or loss”, “held-to-maturityvestments”, “available-for-sale”
financial assets and “loans and receivables”. Tdmsiication depends on the nature and
purpose of financial assets and is determined airtieedf initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss TRY.)

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL wheeefinancial asset is either held for
trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for tradin@) it has been acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the near future; or (i) oiial recognition, it is a part of an
identified portfolio of financial instruments that tk&roup manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-takirag; (iii) it is a derivative that is not
designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset fetdirading may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if (i) such designatieliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that wouldratise arise; or (ii) the financial
asset forms part of a group of financial assetsrang€ial liabilities or both, which is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a dhie\basis, in accordance with the
Group's documented risk management or investmenégraand information about the
grouping is provided internally on that basis; o) {tiforms part of a contract containing
one or more embedded derivatives and FRS 39 Finansialiments: Recognition and
Measurement permits the entire combined contractt(@sdiability) to be designated as
FVTPL.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or less stated at fair value, with any
resultant gain or loss recognised in profit or lofhe net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earndth@financial asset and is included in
the statement of profit or loss and other comprelieriacome. Fair value is determined
in the manner described in note 33(e).
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Held-to-maturity financial assets

Bonds with fixed or determinable payments and fixedunitgtdates where the Group has
a positive intent and ability to hold to maturity actassified as held-to-maturity
investments.  Subsequent to initial measurement, thatthaturity investments are
measured at amortised cost using the effective sttarethod less impairment, with
revenue recognised on an effective yield basis.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Certain shares and debt securities held by the Gnauplassified as being available for
sale and are stated at fair value. Fair value erghated in the manner described in note
33(e). Gains and losses arising from changes inviine are recognised in other
comprehensive income with the exception of impairmenefssterest calculated using
the effective interest method and foreign exchangesgana losses on monetary assets
which are recognised directly in profit or loss. &#the investment is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or pgwiously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluationveesereclassified to profit or
loss.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments remagnised in profit or loss when

the Group’s right to receive payments is establisiied. fair value of available-for-sale

monetary assets denominated in a foreign currenggtemined in that foreign currency

and translated at the spot rate at end of the regoperiod. The change in fair value
attributable to translation differences that resuirfra change in amortised cost of the
available-for-sale monetary asset is recognised ifit o loss, and other changes are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables thet fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market are classéds “loans and receivables”. Loans
and receivables are measured at amortised cost tmEngffective interest method less
impairment. Interest is recognised by applying theceffe interest method, except for
short-term receivables when the recognition of istane®uld be immaterial.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only whercohtractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or it transfers therfaial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to anoth#y.etf the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewardswehership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its ret@meckst in the asset and an associated
liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the @poretains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial tasse Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collatedalisarowing for the proceeds received.

Classification as debt or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issuedh®y &roup are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements dntéoeand the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.
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Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either fingh liabilities “at fair value through profit
or loss” or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or log§VTPL)

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL wééhe financial liability is either held
for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for triad if (i) it has been incurred principally for
the purpose of repurchasing in the near futurej)at {§ a part of an identified portfolio of
financial instruments that the Group manages togethérhas a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or (iii) it is a derivag that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liabiitheld for trading may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if (i) such designatieliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that wothéraise arise; or (ii) on initial
recognition, the financial liability forms part of gtoup of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed and its perfanogis evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group's documented risk managtean investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided internalhythat basis; or (iii) it forms part of
a contract containing one or more embedded derivatares FRS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designagedt FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit lmss are initially measured at fair value
and subsequently stated at fair value, with any regud&n or loss recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profibss incorporates any interest paid on the
financial liability and is included in the ‘other opéing income and expenses’ line in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensigeme. Fair value is determined in
the manner described in note 33(e).

Other financial liabilities

Trade and other payables are initially measurediatvélue, net of transaction costs, and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, usngfféctive interest method, with
interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts areallyitimeasured at fair value, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using fhetiw$ interest method. Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transactists)cand the settlement or redemption
of borrowings is recognised over the term of the bwangs in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs (note 2(y))

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are meakumgially at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, subsequently at the hightseaimount of obligation under the
guarantee recognised as a provision in accordartbeRRS 37Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assetnd the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation in accordance with FRSR&venue

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, amlgt when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or expired.
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Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidencessalual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equitystruments are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging accounting

The Group enters into a variety of derivative finahmstruments to manage its exposure
to interest rate and foreign exchange rate riskudiel foreign exchange forward
contracts and interest rate swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair valudlge date a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured to their &uevat the end of each reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised ofitpor loss immediately unless the
derivative is designated and effective as a hedgstgument, in which event the timing of
the recognition in profit or loss depends on the neatfithe hedge relationship.

The Group designates certain derivatives as eftbdges of the fair value of recognised
assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair valoedges), hedges of highly probable
forecast transactions or hedges of foreign curreisyof firm commitments (cash flow
hedges), or hedges of net investments in foreign opesat

A derivative is presented as a non-current assatram-current liability if the remaining
maturity of the instrument is more than 12 monthd s not expected to be realised or
settled within 12 months. Other derivatives ares@méed as current assets or current
liabilities.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain hedging instruments, whatbde derivatives and non-
derivatives in respect of foreign currency risk, @hee fair value hedges, cash flow
hedges, or hedges of net investments in foreign opesatiHedges of foreign exchange
risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cksh fiedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the eriguments the relationship between
the hedging instrument and hedged item, along witlisitsmanagement objectives and its
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactiéghgthermore, at the inception of the
hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documentkearntiee hedging instrument that
is used in a hedging relationship is highly effectiveffsetting changes in fair values or
cash flows of the hedged item.

Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that asggiated and qualify as fair value hedges
are recorded in profit or loss for the period imraéely, together with any changes in the
fair value of the hedged item that is attributable ®hbdged risk. The change in the fair
value of the hedging instrument and the change inh#uged item attributable to the
hedged risk are recognised in the line of the stateroé profit or loss and other
comprehensive income relating to the hedged item.
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Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revéiesddging relationship, the
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, ercgsed, or no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting. The adjustment to the carryinguatraf the hedged item arising from
the hedged risk is amortised to profit or loss ftbat date.

Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair valu¢hef derivatives that are designated and
qualify as cash flow hedges is recognised in other cdrapstve income. The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognigathediately in profit or loss as part of
other income and expenses.

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income andmadated in equity are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period whea ttedged item is recognised in profit or
loss in same line item of the statement of profibes and other comprehensive income as
the recognised hedged item. However, when the fdreeaisaction that is hedged results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a fmaancial liability, the gains and losses
previously accumulated in equity are transferred frouoitg and included in the initial
measurement of the cost of the asset or liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revdiesddging relationship, the
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, ercgsed, or no longer qualifies for
hedge accounting. Any gain or loss accumulated in equitijat time remains in equity
and when the forecast transaction is ultimatelygesed in profit or loss, such gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss, or transdefrom equity and included in the initial
measurement of the cost of the asset or liabilitydescribed above. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cuivelegain or loss that was
accumulated in equity is recognised immediately inifpoofioss.

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations azeusted for similarly to cash flow
hedges. Any gain or loss on the hedging instrumertingléo the effective portion of the
hedge is recognised in other comprehensive income andnaleded in the foreign
currency translation account. The gain or loss inglato the ineffective portion is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Gains and losses previously recognised in other cagmpsive income and accumulated
in foreign currency translation account are rediadsn profit or loss in the same way as
exchange differences relating to the foreign operaisndescribed in the accounting
policy for foreign currency transactions and tratigte as stated in note 2(e) to these
financial statements.

Offsetting arrangements

Financial assets and financial liabilities are tiseif and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when the Company bad3roup has a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts; and inteittigreto settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaalgo A right to set-off must be available
as of the date of the reporting rather than beingirent on a future event and must be
exercisable by any of the counterparties, both in tihenalocourse of business and in the
event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy.
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Property, plant and equipment

Measurement

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the ymooh or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes are stdtedst less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes professional fees and for qualifyisgets, borrowing cost, capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Deptem of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences whesstts are ready for their intended use.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipmanwe ldifferent useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major compomémperty, plant and equipment.

Revaluation

Certain land and buildings held for use in the pradnabdr supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purpose, are stated in the stateofdinancial position at their revalued
amounts, being the fair value at the date of revalnatess any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment .|¢3sesluations are performed
with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amodmes not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the erideofeporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising from the revaluatad such land and buildings is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumuilatéioe asset revaluation
reserve, except to the extent that it reverses auai@h decrease for the same asset
previously recognised in profit or loss, in which &dise increase is credited to profit or
loss to the extent of the decrease previously chatgeatofit or loss. A decrease in
carrying amount arising from the revaluation of slexd and buildings is charged to
profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds thermdaif any, held in the asset revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of teaeta

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the apswaluation of assets, other than
properties under construction and freehold land, dwaar estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, on the following bases:

Useful lives

Building on freehold land 50 years

Leasehold land, buildings and improvements Over tmaireng lease periods
ranging 3 to 99 years

Plant and equipment 1 to 15 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depi@timethod are reviewed at each
year end, with the effect of any changes in esérb&ing accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated lmierekpected useful lives on the
same basis as owned assets or, if there is no ¢prtisén the lessee will obtain ownership
by the end of the lease term, the asset shall be deftyeciated over the shorter of the
lease term and its useful life.
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(h)

(k)

Disposal

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retiremenaro item of property, plant and

equipment is determined as the difference betweersdles proceeds and the carrying
amounts of the asset and is recognised in profit 8. loOn the subsequent sale or
retirement of a revalued property, the attributablealtetion surplus remaining in the

properties revaluation reserve is transferred djreéotretained earnings. No transfer is
made from the revaluation reserve to retained easniegcept when an asset is
derecognised.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recoghiae an asset at the date that
control is acquired (the acquisition date). Goodiwilneasured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of anycootrolling interest in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously helditggnterest (if any) in the entity over
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identiadsets acquired and the liabilities
assumed.

If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest infdifevalue of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets exceeds the sum of the consideration einaosf the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the falueaof the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any), the excesetognised immediately in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impaamh at least annually. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated éach of the Group’s cash-
generating units expected to benefit from the synergfeshe combination. Cash-

generating units to which goodwill has been allocatedested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is an indication that anit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce theywagramount of any goodwill allocated
to the unit and then to the other assets of theproirata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment tessgnised for goodwill is not

reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a subsidiary, the attributable amoungaddwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Impairment of assets

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair valueugr profit or loss, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each repontiegod. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a resoh@br more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, thstimated future cash flows of the
investment have been impacted.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significar prolonged decline in the fair

value of the investment below its cost is consider@dbé objective evidence of
impairment.
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For all other financial assets, objective evidence opainment could include (i)
significant financial difficulty of the issuer or caerparty; or (ii) default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or (iii) it becow probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, atmount of the impairment is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount amgbsent value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the original effectivesriest rate for a similar financial asset.
Such impairment loss will not reverse in subsequerbgser

The carrying amount of the financial asset is redumyethe impairment loss directly for
all financial assets with the exception of trade ived#es where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Wlremle receivable is uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Sujoent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against thealiace account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised fit prdoss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is cameil to be impaired, cumulative gains
or losses previously recognised in other comprehemstoene are reclassified to profit or
loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised codt, & subsequent period, the amount of
the impairment loss decreases and the decreaseeceslabed objectively to an event

occurring after the impairment loss was recognideglpteviously recognised impairment

loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extikatcarrying amount of the financial

asset at the date the impairment is reversed doexoe¢d what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity instrumentspamment losses previously

recognised in profit or loss are not reversed thropgtfit or loss. Any subsequent

increase in fair value after an impairment loss mgaised in other comprehensive
income. In respect of available-for-sale debt securitigsairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase i fdir value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after g@gnition of the impairment loss.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

The carrying amounts of the Group’s tangible and nogitde assets are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period to determine whether teemey indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such itidingexists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine thateat¢he impairment loss (if any).

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverableuamof an individual asset, the

Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cashagi@geunit to which the asset

belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basleataln can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-gengratiits (CGU), or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for whiatle@sonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and igihle assets not yet available for use
are tested for impairment annually, and whenever ihaa indication that the asset may
be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value lesssdmsisell and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cask dendiscounted to their present value
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(m)

(n)

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects curreantket assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for wiiehestimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) isnas#d to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (CGU) isaemtl to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profilass, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the immeait loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, thengpamount of the asset (cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estiwkits recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed thentgpamount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognisdtidasset (cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss i©geised immediately in profit or loss,

unless the relevant asset is carried at a revaluedramn which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase

Investment properties

Investment properties comprise completed propertiepeomerties under construction or
redevelopment held to earn rental and/or for capp@reciation. Investment properties
are measured initially at cost, including transactosts. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value.sGaitosses arising from changes in
the fair value of investment properties are recogniseatofit or loss for the period in
which they arise.

Investment properties are derecognised upon disposal en Wey are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is eérgdetom their disposal. Any
gain or loss on derecognition of the property (catedlas the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the)assecluded in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.

Transfers are made to or from investment propertirevand only when there is a change
in use. For a transfer from investment propertyvwoey occupied property, the deemed
costs of property for subsequent accounting is itsvigine at the date of change in use.
For a transfer from owner occupied property to investnproperty, the property is
accounted for in accordance with the accounting péticyroperty, plant and equipment
[note 2(g)] up to the date of change in use.

Development properties

Development properties are properties held for devedoprand sale in the ordinary
course of business. They include completed propertiepramerties in the course of
development. Unsold properties are stated at the loineast and estimated net realisable
value. Net realisable value represents the estinsatldg price less all estimated costs of
completion and costs to be incurred in marketing &flithg.

Development properties are stated at cost plus attoleupsofits less progress billings if
their revenue is recognised based on percentage qfleiion. Progress billings not yet
paid by customers are included within “trade and otheeivables”. Payments received
from purchasers prior to completion are included iradé&r and other payables” as
advanced billings.
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(P)

(@)

(r)

(s)

Cost of development properties comprises costs thatereirectly to the development,
such as acquisition costs and related costs thaittutgutable to development activities
and can be allocated to the development project, imgjuattributable borrowing costs
[note 2(y)].

The Group’s policy for revenue recognition in relatian development properties is
described under “Revenue recognition” [note 2(w)].

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost andeadisable value. Cost comprises direct
materials and direct labour costs where applicabletlhoske overheads that have been
incurred in bringing the inventories to their pres@dation and condition. Cost is
calculated using the weighted average method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling pricéhénordinary course of business, less
the estimated cost of completion and selling expensAffiowance is made where
necessary for obsolete, slow-moving and defectiventories.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated stateoh cash flows comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, bank overdrafts and dtberterm highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to a known amount of s are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. Cash and cash equivadectade encumbered fixed deposits.

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a construction contract cantiveagsd reliably, revenue and costs
are recognised by reference to the stage of complefithe contract activity at the end of
reporting period, as measured by the proportion thatraxt cost incurred for work
performed to date relative to the estimated totatrect cost, except where this would not
be representative of the stage of completion. Vanatin contract work, claims and
incentive payments are included to the extent thay theve been agreed with the
customer.

Where the outcome of a construction contract cannoedtienated reliably, contract
revenue is recognised to the extent recovery of cantoets is probable. Contract costs
are recognised as expenses in the periods in whigratkancurred. When it is probable
that total contract cost will exceed total contnastenue, the expected loss is recognised
as an expense for the period.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenevetethes of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownerghighe lessee. All other leases are

classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases argnieed as receivables at the
amount of the Group’s net investment in the leasd@sanEe lease income is allocated to
accounting periods so as to reflect a constant perrade of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases
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(t)

Rental income from operating leases is recognisedstraight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease unless another systematic lsasigre representative of the time pattern
in which the benefit attributable to the leased assafiminished. Initial direct cost
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operatiagdeare added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised as an expensthelesse term on the same basis as
the lease income.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognisestets @f the Group at their fair value at
the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the pnévalue of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is includedhe statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation. Lease paymentsppatéoned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to aclaegenstant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges charged directly to profit or loss,
unless they are directly attributable to qualifyingads, in which case they are capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s general policy on bamgweosts [note 2(y)]. Contingent
rentals are recognised as expenses in the periodsdh they are incurred.

Rentals payable under operating leases are chargedfitoor loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease unless anotis¢eragtic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from kwsed asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leasescaognised as expenses in the period
in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received ter @nto operating leases, such
incentives are recognised as a liability. The agdesgenefit of incentives is recognised
as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-lises baxcept where another systematic
basis is more representative of the time pattewhich economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a prasigmation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable thatGreup will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made darii@int of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the bestagstiof the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the tigggoperiod, taking into account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Whepeoaision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligatie carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits requiredttte seprovision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is resmgl as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amounhefréceivable can be measured
reliably.
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(w)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until thereasoreble assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to themdathe grants will be received.
Government grants whose primary condition is thai@heup should purchase, construct
or otherwise acquire non-current assets are recogassddferred income in the statement
of financial position and transferred to profit os$ on a systematic and rational basis over
the useful lives of the related assets.

Other government grants are recognised as incometlosgueriods necessary to match
them with the costs for which they are intended dmgensate, on a systematic basis.
Government grants that are receivable as compendaticexpenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate finahsupport to the Group with no
future related costs, are recognised in the profibss in the period in which they become
receivable.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consimenaceived or receivable for the
sale of goods and rendering of services in the arglioaurse of the Group’s activities.
Revenue is reduced for goods and services tax, éstincastomer returns, rebates and
other similar allowances.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revemdigelated cost can be
reliably measured, when it is probable that the ctllglity of the related receivables is
reasonably assured and when the specific criteri@doh of the Group’s activities are
met.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised whethalfollowing conditions are

satisfied:

» the Group has transferred to the buyer the significgaks and rewards of ownership
of the goods;

* the Group retains neither continuing managerial lirement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control dkiergoods sold,;

» the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

* it is probable that the economic benefits associatdu tivé transaction will flow to
the entity; and

» the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect oftridesaction can be measured
reliably.

Revenue from sales of development properties

Revenue from completed property development is recapmben the risks and rewards
of ownership have been transferred to the purchaser ¢itrough the transfer of legal title
or equitable interest in a property.
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Revenue recognition on partly completed properties foelsale is based on the following
methods:

* For sale of partly completed development propertiesrigapore under progressive
payment scheme, profit is recognised upon the sigrfirggle contracts and payment
of the first instalment which corresponds to 20%heféstimated profit attributable to
the actual contracts signed. Subsequent recognitiopradit is based on the
percentage of completion method as construction preegesl he percentage of work
completed is measured based on the construction kteldreosts incurred to date as
a proportion of the estimated total construction ratated costs;

* For sale of partly completed development propertieSingapore under deferred
payment scheme and overseas development propertsjgorecognised only upon
the transfer of significant risks and rewards ofnerghip of the properties to the
purchasers.

In cases where transfer of significant risks anaares of ownership coincides with

the time the development units are delivered to thehpsers, revenue is recognised
upon completion of construction; and when legal tidsges to the buyer or when
equitable interest in the property vests to the buyen uptease of the handover

notice to the buyer, whichever is earlier.

Construction contracts

Revenue from construction contracts is recogniseddoordance with the Group’s
accounting policy on construction contracts as diedas note 2(r).

Revenue from hotel investment

Revenue is recognised when goods and services haveitmathed to the customer and
the costs in relation to the goods and service caaliadly measured.

Services rendered

Revenue from a contract to provide services is resegnby reference to the stage of
completion of the contract. The stage of completion of théracinis determined as
follows:

* installation fees are recognised by reference tosthge of completion of the
installation, determined as the proportion of thalttine expected to install that has
elapsed at the end of the reporting period except thahwe from services of short
duration are recognised on completion of services;

» servicing fees included in the price of products soddrecognised by reference to the
proportion of the total cost of providing the sersider the product sold, taking into
account historical trends in the number of servicggadly provided on past goods
sold; and

* revenue from time and material contracts is recegnat the contractual rates as
labour hours are delivered and direct expenses angedcu

-34-



v)

(2)

(aa)

Rental income

The Group’s policy for recognition of revenue from opiatpleases is described above in
note 2(s).

Interest income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by referenthe principal outstanding and at
the effective interest rate applicable.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investment is recognised whensti@eholders’ rights to receive
payment have been established.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisiti@onstruction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessakidya substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are addecetodst of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intendedor sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pendimgr expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing celgjible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profilass in the period in which they are
incurred.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremheotts directly attributable to the issue
of ordinary shares and share options are recogaseddeduction from equity, net of any
tax effects. Dividends are deducted from sharehsl@guity and recorded as a liability
when declared payable. Proposed dividends which are stdjsleareholders’ approval
are not deducted from equity and are not recordédhalgies.

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit obligations

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefinplare recognised as expenses
when employees have rendered the services entitlingn ttee the contributions.
Contributions made to state-managed retirement heswfemes, such as the Singapore
Central Provident Fund, are dealt with as definedrimniton plans where the Group’s
obligations under the schemes are equivalent to thosig in a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan.

Employees’ leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recogniset they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability forueaas a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of reporting period.
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(ab)

Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax dupagable and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable prafithe year. Taxable profit differs
from profit as reported in profit or loss becausexitludes items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it furtikeludes items that are not taxable or
tax deductible. The Group’s liability for current tixcalculated using tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted or substantively enmctedintries where the Company and
subsidiaries operate by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on the difference betvileercarrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the esponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for ughmg balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recegph for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recogniséktextent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deduetitdmporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recegnisthe temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (otheéhan in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction tifi@ces neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxablengerary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joirtukes) except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary differennd & is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is redest the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer prolihblesufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the assets to lvevered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates thaespected to apply in the period when the
liability is settled or when the asset is realiseskleon the tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the endeofefforting period. Except for
investment properties measured using the fair valugelnthe measurement of deferred
tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consecgeethat would follow from the manner
in which the Group expects, at the end of the rempiieriod, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax lialslittend deferred tax assets for
investment properties that are measured using thedhie model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered thsalghunless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investpreperty is depreciable and is
held within a business model of the Group whose busiobgective is to consume

substantially all of the economic benefits embodied inrtiiestment property over time,

rather than through sale. The Group has not rebtligeghresumption that the carrying
amount of the investment properties will be recovergeaty through sale.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset whene is a legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabgitand when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Grotgnds to settle its current tax assets
and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expemseome in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items credited or debited outpidgit or loss (either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity), in whiclsecéhe tax is also recognised
either in other comprehensive income or directly in equitywhere they arise from the
initial accounting for business combination. In cat& dousiness combination, the tax
effect is taken into account in calculating goodwill determining the excess of the
acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the apis identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost.

(ac) Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group tigtges in business activities from
which it may earn revenue and incur expenses, inclugvenue and expenses that relate
to transactions with any of the Group’s other compaent

The Group determines and presents operating segmesed loa information that is
provided internally to the Chief Executive OfficetCEQ”), who is the Group’s chief
operating decision maker. All operating segments’ dipgraresults are reviewed
regularly by the Group’s CEO to make decision abouturess to be allocated to the
segments and assess its performance, and for whicketdisfinancial information is
available.

3 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, whick described in note 2,

management is required to make judgements, estimates sunth®Ns about the carrying

amounts of assets and liabilities that are not rgagidparent from other sources. The
estimates and assumptions are based on historical exgeerand other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may difamfthese estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are revieweth @mgoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in wthiehestimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of theision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting poicies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from thaselving estimations (see below),

that management has made in the process of applying the &emquunting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recogms@ financial statements.
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Revenue recognition on commodity trading

As described in note 2(w) to the financial statementss the Group’s policy to recognise
revenue to the extent that it is probable that the econbemefits will flow to the Group. In
making this judgement, management has considered the detdtiézc for the recognition of
revenue from the sale of goods, set outFRS 18Revenuewhich includes the primary
responsibility for providing the goods, inventory risk, latitudestablishing prices, and credit
risk.

In relation to the commaodity trading business of SP Corporaimited (“SP Corp”), a listed
subsidiary of the Group, SP Corp is of the view that #dets a principal as it has exposure to
the significant risks and rewards associated witrsétle of coal. Accordingly, the sales value
of these transactions was recognised as revenue whagppreximately $23,200,000 (2013:
$35,000,000) for the financial year as disclosed in note 2letdirtancial statements under
“Sale of products”.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Key assumptions concerning the future, and other key souressimation uncertainty at the
end of reporting period, that have a significant $kcausing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the fieancial year, are discussed below:

Percentage of completion for revenue recognition

The Group uses the stage of completion method to accauits fcontract revenue [note 21]
and contract costs arising from the sale of developmenepres in Singapore under
progressive payment scheme that are within the scope asbedsari paragraph 2 of the
Accompanying Note to INT FRS 115 — Agreement for the Congbrucif Real Estate [note
2(w)].

The stage of completion is measured by reference tdicaion of value of work performed
to date. Where there is no certification of value latée, the stage of completion is based on
the respective costs incurred to date as compared toothe bdudgeted costs of the
development.

Significant judgements are required to estimate thel tota&tract costs which include
estimation for variation works and any other claims froontractors. In making the
judgements, the Group relies on past experience and theolvegecialists. The valuation of
development properties and provisions for foreseeableslogsany, are therefore subject to
uncertainty in respect of variation works and estiomof future costs. The Group adopts a
prudent approach in evaluating these uncertainties.

Fair value measurement and valuation processes

The Group carries its hotel properties (note 9) and investpreperties (note 10) at fair value
based on independent professional valuations or internst@nhs.
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In determining fair values, the valuers have used vaoatechniques (including direct
comparison method, investment method, capitalisation methodudisd cash flow method
and residual land value method) which involve certain estsnahd significant unobservable
inputs which are disclosed in notes 9 and 10. The direcpaason method involves the
analysis of comparable sales of similar properties angstag prices to those reflective of the
investment properties. The investment method capitaliseéscame stream into a present
value using single-year capitalisation rates. Capitadisahethod involves assessment of the
income earning capacity and capitalised it at the adoptpdatisation rate to derive a core
value. Discounted cash flow method recognises the tinoe wdlmoney by estimating the net
present value of future cash flows. In the residual lealde method of valuation, the total
gross development costs and developer’s profit are deductedhe gross development value
to arrive at the residual value of the property under devedoprithe gross development value
is the estimated value of the property assuming setiisfacompletion of the development as
at the date of valuation. In relying on valuation repdfte, management has exercised its
judgement and is satisfied that the valuation methodseatiwhates are reflective of current
market conditions.

Information relating to the valuation techniques and inpsedd in determining the fair value
of hotel properties and investment properties are distlioseotes 9 and 10 respectively to the
financial statements.

Deferred tax liabilities arising from increase in the carryingamt of investment in Grand
Hotel Group

The Group’s interest in Grand Hotel Group (“GHG”) ischbly TSH Australia Holdings Pte
Ltd (“TAHAUD”) through Tuan Sing (Australia) Trust (SAT”) and Tuan Sing Real Estate
Trust (“TSRET"). TAHAUD is a wholly-owned subsidiary of tli@ompany. GHG is not

liable for tax under the Australian tax legislation provided taxable income of GHG

(including any assessable component of capital gains fr@@moganvestment assets) is fully
distributed to unit holders in each year.

TAHAUD is subject to income taxes in the Australian juagidn. TAHAUD has not been
taxed on income received from the trust in the past as itihatilised losses brought forward.

At the end of the reporting period, TAHAUD have estimategregate tax losses of
A$1,432,000 (2013: A$6,880,000) or equivalent to $1,538,000 (2013: $7,770,000). Khese ta
losses can be used to offset against future taxable inemisiag from the distribution of
income from GHG subject to satisfying the relevant lessupment tests.

The estimates of taxable gains and available tax loasesdependent on a number of
assumptions, such as the nature and deductibility of exgyehgecalculation of tax base which
involves adjustment of certain historical cost with infatifactor; the determination of
whether there is thin capitalisation which may result eitfability to claim tax deduction for
finance cost. In making these estimates, the Group he&s tadvice from certain tax
specialists.

The Group has in turn estimated deferred tax liabilityireg from an increase in the carrying
amount of its investments in GHG at A$23,816,000 (2013: A$17,807,00&)uivalent to
$25,576,000 (2013: $20,113,000) [note 17]. In estimating this amourGréup considers
the taxable gains to be the excess of Group’s share ahitheafue of net assets of GHG over
the tax cost base of the securities in GHG held by tloefgsr
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Future actual tax liability when incurred and payable wifiedifrom this estimate to thextent
that the future realisation of values from the investme@H G differs from the amount of fair
value of the assets currently estimated. It woutdilarly be affected by any change in tax
losses and tax base which have yet to be agreed wikustealian tax authorities.

Recoverability of investments in and amounts due from subsidiarigeeirtCompany’s
financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries and amounts due from subsid@amesested for impairment
whenever there is any objective evidence or indication thaé thesets may be impaired. The
recoverable amounts of these assets have been subseaietertivined based on fair value
less costs to sell. As a result of above assessrhertt,ampany made a net impairment loss of
$11,240,000 (2013: $10,231,000) for investments in subsidiaries andrapagtment loss of
$20,639,000 (2013: reversal of impairment loss $79,903,000) for amouwetsfrdm
subsidiaries. The carrying amounts of investments in diab®s and amounts due from
subsidiaries are disclosed in notes 11 and 15 respectively.

Allowance for doubtful receivables

Allowance for doubtful receivables is based on an evamabf the collectability of
receivables. A considerable amount of judgement is requiredssessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, including current tmedihiness, past collection history of
each customer and ongoing dealings with them. If the dialhoonditions of the customers
were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of tlabitity to make payments, additional
allowance may be required. The carrying amountaudrand other receivables are disclosed
in note 6 to the financial statements.
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Segment information

Products and services from which reportable segments derive themue

For management purpose, the Group is organised into stramegicess units based on their
products and services. The Group’s principal business opgeratits, during and at the end of
the reporting period, are Property, Hotels Investmaralidtrial Services and Other Investments.
Accordingly, the Group’s reportable operating segments urid8r1o8 are as follows:

Segmen Principal activities

Propert Development of properties for sale, property investnaan provision o
property management services.

Hotels Investment irhotelsin Australiathrough (randHotel Grand (“GHG”).

Investment

Industrial Trading and marketing of selected industrial comnnes, distribution of tyres

Services and retreading of tyres, as well as manufacturingpaypropylene woven
bags.

Other Investments in GulTecha printed circuit boards manufacturer w

Investments | operations in Singapore and China, and Pan-West, iteretf golf-related
products.

Corporate an | Provision of corpora-level service:
Others

Segment revenue represents revenue generated from exednalternal customers. Segment
profit represents the profit earned by each segmentalfteation of central administrative costs
and finance costs. This is the measure reportetidaliief operating decision maker for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segenfamhance.

Management monitors the operating results of each buggess unit for the purpose of making
decisions on resource allocation and performance assdss@aporate and Others are managed
on a group basis and are not allocated to operating segm8eggment assets and liabilities are
presented net of inter-segment balances. Inter-segmeimgpis determined on arm’s length
basis.

Information regarding each of the Group’s reportable satgns presented below.
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Segment revenues and results

Corporate Inter-
Hotels Industrial Other and segment Total
Property  Investment Services Investments Others Eliminations  Consolidated
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2014
Revenue
External revenue 202,215 12,023# 140,347 @ 180 - 354,765
Inter-segment revenue 807 - - - 9,339 (10,146) -
203,022 12,023 140,347 - 9,519 (10,146) 354,765
Results
Gross profit 53,575 3,322 7,621 - 2,507 1,601 68,626
Other operating income 1,596 26,991 352 205 22,978 (22,945) 29,177
Distribution costs (1,501) - (2,729) - - - (4,230)
Administrative expenses (5,585) (1,226) (3,886) (12) (1,956) (3,537) (1@epo
Other operating expenses (4,940) (18,192) (156) (136) (37,161) 37,159 (28)42
Share of results
of equity accounted investees - 8,049 - 11,936 - - 19,985
Finance income 4,953 185 758 27 872 (2,035) 4,760
Finance costs (7,028) (3,374) (28) - (790) 2,034 (9,186)
Profit before tax
and fair value adjustments 41,070 15,755 1,932 2,020 (13,550) 12,277 69,504
Fair value adjustments 3,264 3,685 - (480) - - 6,469
Profit before tax 44,334 19,440 1,932 11,540 (1305 12,277 75,973
Income tax expenses (7,753) (6,478) (107) ) (48) - (14,387)
Profit for the year 36,581 12,962 1,825 11,539 (598) 12,277 61,586
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company 36,580 12,962 1,409 11,539 (13,598) 12,277 61,169
Non-controlling interests 1 - 416 - - - 417
Profit for the year 36,581 12,962 1,825 11,539 (13,598) 12,277 61,586

#: Revenue reported under “Hotels Investment” refato GHG's results after acquisition (note 29)ioPto that, the Group equity
accounted for its 50% interest in GHG.
@: No revenue is reported under “Other Investmemats'the Group equity accounts for its investme@ulTech and Pan-West.
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Segment revenues and results (cont'd)

Corporate Inter-
Hotels Industrial Other and segment Total
Property  Investment Services  Investments Others Eliminations  Consolidated
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2013
Revenue
External revenue 140,065 # 162,025 @ 183 - 302,273
Inter-segment revenue 1,032 - - - 20,486 (21,518) -
141,097 - 162,025 - 20,669 (21,518) 302,273
Results
Gross profit 40,576 - 9,577 - 14,573 (13,456) 51,270
Other operating income 4,901 202 414 - 96,872 5,8 5,546
Distribution costs (14,094) - (2,892) - - - (16,986
Administrative expenses (6,595) (664) (4,766) 3) (2,753) (1,085) (15,866)
Other operating expenses (3,222) (514) 377) - (20,149) 20,148 (4,114)
Share of results
of equity accounted investees - 7,264 - 7,493 - - 14,757
Finance income 4,287 20 600 111 - - 5,018
Finance costs (2,855) (1,226) - - - 1 (4,080)
Profit before tax
and fair value adjustments 22,998 5,082 2,556 7,601 88,543 (91,235) 35,545
Fair value adjustments 17,950 9,072 - 202 - - 27,224
Profit before tax 40,948 14,154 2,556 7,803 88,543 (91,235) 62,769
Income tax expenses (4,362) (5,016) (170) 3) (164) - (9,715)
Profit for the year 36,586 9,138 2,386 7,800 88,379 (91,235) 53,054
Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company 36,008 9,138 1,910 7,800 788,3  (91,235) 52,000
Non-controlling interests 578 - 476 - - - 1,054
Profit for the year 36,586 9,138 2,386 7,800 88,379 (91,235) 53,054

#: Revenue reported under “Hotels Investment” refato GHG's results after acquisition (note 29)ioPto that, the Group equity
accounted for its 50% interest in GHG.
@: No revenue is reported under “Other Investmemats'the Group equity accounts for its investme@ulTech and Pan-West.
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Segment assets, liabilities and other segment information

2014

Assets

Segment assets

Investments in equity accounted investees
Total assets

Liabilities

Segment liabilities

Loans and borrowings

Current and deferred tax liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets

Other information

Capital expenditure

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Fair value gain on investment
properties

Fair value (gain)/loss on financial
instrument

2013

Assets

Segment assets

Investments in equity accounted investees
Total assets

Liabilities

Segment liabilities

Loans and borrowings

Current and deferred tax liabilities
Total liabilities

Net assets

Other information

Capital expenditure

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Fair value gain on investment
properties

Fair value gain on financial
instrument

Corporate
Hotels Industrial Other and Total
Property  Investment Services  Investments Others  Consolidated
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
1,496,391 669,452 76,516 16 966 2,243,341
- - - 62,981 - 62,981
1,496,391 669,452 76,516 62,997 966 2,306,322
(52,806) (31,340) (21,304) (60) (2,047) (107,557)
(886,523) (379,074) - - (79,275) (1,344,872)
(13,854) (26,264) (560) (29) (139) (40,846)
(953,183) (436,678) (21,864) (89) (81,461) (1,498)2
543,208 232,774 54,652 62,908 (80,495) 13,087
305 102# 424 @ - 831
230 381# 467 @ - 1,078
(3,264) (3,076) - - (6,340)
- (609) - 480 - (129)
1,494,489 3 79,778 36 846 1,575,152
- 159,655 - 48,504 - 208,159
1,494,489 159,658 79,778 48,540 846 783Bl1
(51,766) (299) (26,956) (35) 19% (79,675)
(917,656) - - - - (917,656)
(5,315) (2% (711) (32) (304) (26,775)
(974,737) (20,712) (27,667) (67) (923) (1,024,106)
519,752 138,946 52,111 48,473 77) 759,205
152 # 527 @ - 679
280 # 419 @ - 699
(17,381) (9,010) - - - (26,391)
(569) (62) - (202) - (833)

to that, the Group equity accounted for its 50%tfiest in GHG.

GulTech and Pan-West.
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Geographical information

Geographically, management reviews the performance dbubmesses in Singapore, Australia,
China, Malaysia, Indonesia, Europe and other ASEAN cimsntr

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segsagment revenue is based on the
geographical location of external customers. Non-curresgtaisare based on the geographical
location of the assets.

Revenue from Non-current
customers assets
201¢ 201z 201¢ 201z
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Singapor 255,19: 193,30t 90(,881 867,27.
Australia @ 12,02 @ 638,18 159,65!
Chine 21,38¢ 13,80¢ 6,66°¢ 6,651
Malaysie 16,80¢ 21,35¢ 2,261 2,21¢
Indonesii 22,529 24,42 - -
Europ 13,01¢ 30,44 - -
Other ASEAN countri€’ 12,157 16,90¢ - -
Other: 1,656 2,02¢ - -
354,765 302,273 1,547,992 1,035,802

@: Revenue reported under “Hotels Investment” retato GHG's results after acquisition (note 29)tioPto that, the Group equity
accounted for its 50% interest in GHG.

A Other ASEAN countries comprise Myanmar, Vietn@aambodia, Brunei and Laos with revenue constigutiot more than 10% of
total Group revenue for each country.

Other segment information

The Group does not have any single major customer thaibedges 10% or more to the Group’s
revenues.
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5

Cash and bank balances

Group Company
201¢ 201z 201¢ 201z
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cash at banks and on hi 40,11 29,35 35€ 29¢
Fixed deposil 79,76" 114,76¢ - -

Amounts held under the Housi
Developers (Project Account) Rules 132,390 132,753 - -
252,27! 276,87. 35€ 29¢

Cash and bank balances comprise cash and fixed depedit by the Group which are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are sulb@an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Deposits earned interest ranging from 0.5%.966 per annum (2013: 0.5% to 5.3% per
annum) and for tenures ranging from 7 to 360 days (20131,095 days).

Withdrawals of amounts held under the project accoarggestricted to payments for expenditure
incurred on development properties and are subjetiieti@rovisions in the Housing Developers
(Project Account) Rules in Singapore.

Cash and bank balances amounting to $82,556,000 (2012486®00) for the Group was pledged
to banks to secure credit facilities. Informati@tating to the Group’s loans and borrowings are
disclosed in note 13 to the financial statements.

The carrying amounts of the cash and bank balamm@®xmate their fair values at the end of the
reporting period. Further details regarding the exposurentwest rate risk, contractual and
effective interest rates and foreign currency denominatiothe cash and bank balances are
disclosed under note 33 to the financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of Hasis, the consolidated cash and cash
equivalents comprise the following:

Group
201« 201z
$'000 $'000
Cash and cash equivalents per consolidate
statement of cash flows
Cash and bank balances (as per statement of financiabpps 252,270 276,872
Less:
Encumbered fixed deposit and bank balar (64,856 (64,246

187,414 212,626

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had cash and caslalegts placed with banks in China
amounting to $76,115,000 (2013: $86,219,000), of which $63002(2013: $62,548,000) was
pledged to a bank as security for banking facilitieSimgapore. The repatriation of these cash into
Singapore is subject to the Foreign Exchange Coneglilations in China.
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6 Trade and other receivables

Group Company
Note 201¢ 201z 201¢ 201z
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Trade

Trade debtol 48,15! 42,49¢ - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivak (228 (2,707 - -
47,92t 39,78" - -
Amounts due from related part 16 4,001 1,01z - -
51,92¢ 40,80( - -

Non-trade
Land tender depos 11,75: 7,88: - -
Deposits 45¢ 1,15: 73 8t
Prepaymen 3,35¢ 444 111 37
Interesireceivable 5,89( 3,45: - -
Sundry debtol 5,67¢ 16¢ - -
Tax recoverab 12C 34 - -
27,24¢ 13,13t 184 122
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivak (78, (78) (72) (72)
27,17 13,05° 11z 5C
Amount due from relatepartie: 16 8,32¢ 8,40¢ - -
35,49: 21,46: 11z 5C
87,42( 62,26: 11z 5C

Amounts due from related parties

Included in the carrying amount as at 31 December 2&é unbilled rental income of $27,000
(2013: $187,000) relating to rent-free periods givenreaded party lessee as incentive [note 16].

Tender deposits in respect of acquisition of lands

Included in the carrying amount as at 31 December 20dve wender deposits amounting to
$11,751,000 (2013: $7,883,000) relating to land acquisitiodg@ozhou, China and Gilstead Court,
Singapore. For Jiaozhou, the Group has secured itldepibt of land of approximately 60,200
square metre pending the issuance of land title .dEed Gilstead Court collective sale, the
completion of land acquisition is subject to, inteaalhe outcome of a ruling by the High Couirt.

These deposits have been assessed to be placed witlerpatiies who are creditworthy and
accordingly, no allowance for potential non-recowvarthese deposits is required.

Details of collateral

As at 31 December 2014, trade and other receivablesirdgimg to $12,772,000 (2013: $Nil)
included in the above balances were mortgaged to Hankscure credit facilities for the Group.
Information relating to the Group’s loans and borrowirggsgisclosed in note 13 to the financial
statements.
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Allowance for doubtful receivables

An analysis of allowance for doubtful receivables iscdisws:

Group Company

Note 201« 201z 201« 201z
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Allowance for doubtful receivables
Trade (228 (2,707 - -
Nor-trade (78) (78) (72 (72)
(306 (2,785 (72) (72)
At 1 January (2,785 (2,676 (72) (72)
Exchange differenc (20 (89) - -
Acquisition of subsidiey (21) - - -
Amounts written off 2,E1¢ 9¢ - -
Allowancewritten bacl (made, ne 1 (119 - -
At 31 Decembe (306 (2,785 (72 (72)

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables appates their fair values at the end of the
reporting year. Further details regarding the exposurer&gh currency denominated trade and

other receivables are disclosed in note 33 to the fiabstatements.

Analysis of trade receivables

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and aeraly on 7 to 120 days (2013: 14 to 120 days)
credit term. They are recognised at their originabice amounts which represent their fair values
on initial recognition. The Group assesses the paileatistomer’s credit quality and determines
credit limits to be allowed before accepting any new custor@redit limits granted to customers

are reviewed regularly.
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The Group’s trade receivables that were impaired at titeoé the reporting period and the
allowance for doubtful receivables are disclosed below:

Group
201¢ 201z
$00C $00C
Trade receivables, ne
Not past due and not impail 4060: 35,70¢
Past due but not impair( 11327 5,09t
51,€2€ 40,80(
Impaired receivable- collectively assesse™ 219 34¢
Less: Allowance fodoubtful receivable (219) (349)
Impaired receivable- individually assesst
Past due for more than 36 months or no response to rept
y 9 2,358
demand$
Less: Allowance for doubtful receivab 9 (2,358
51,€2¢€ 40,80(C
Notes
(i) Aging of trade receivables that were past due btitmpairec
< 3 month 10,59¢ 4,691
3 months to 6 mont| 442 17¢
6 months to 12 mont 89 161
>12 month 194 64
1132¢ 5,09¢

(i) These amounts stated were before deduction for imeait losses

The Group had trade receivables amounting to $11,323200@3: $5,095,000) in value that were
past due at the end of the reporting period but notifegha These receivables are unsecured and the
analysis of their aging at the end of the reponpiegod is disclosed in note (i) above.

Trade and other receivables that are individually assésdse impaired at the end of the reporting
period relate to debtors that are in significant findraiificulties and have defaulted on payment.
These receivables are not secured by any collateraédit enhancements.

Allowances for doubtful trade and other receivables ezegnised for the estimated irrecoverable
amounts from the sale of goods and services rendered. @thesances for doubtful trade and
other receivables are determined by assessing the priofiEbtors and after considering recovery
prospects. Further details regarding the credit riskréatetand other receivables are disclosed in
note 33(c) to the financial statements.
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7 Inventories

Group
At net
At realisable
cost value Total
$'000 $'000 $'000
201¢
Raw material 1,127 - 1,127
Work-in-progres 1,24¢ - 1,24¢
Finished gooc 1,69¢ 41¢ 2,11«
4,071 41¢€ 4,48
201z
Raw material 1,15¢ - 1,15¢
Work-in-progres 1,16¢ - 1,16¢
Finished gooc 1,20( 5632 1,76:
3,521 562 4,09(

The net realisable values of inventories were stated of allowance of $150,000
(2013: $88,000).

During the year, $75,000 (2013: $20,000) was recogniseh axpense in respect of allowance for
inventory obsolescence [note 25].

Details of collateral

As at 31 December 2014, inventories amounting to $786(R013: $Nil) included in the above
balances were mortgaged to banks to secure ceailitiés for the Group. Information relating to
the Group’s loans and borrowings is disclosed in note H3¥tfinancial statements.

8 Development properties

Group

201« 201z
$'000 $'000
Propertiesin the course of developmt 409,96:- 397,54
Completed properties held for < 4,18¢ 6,74
414,15 404,28!

Represented by
Propertie in the course of developmiin Singapor 383,72. 371,59¢
Propertie in the course of developmiin Chine 26,24. 25,94
Complete« properties in Chir 4,18¢ 6,74
414,15 404,28!

Development properties comprise land site secured, prapéntine course of development and
completed properties held for sale. These projects bpemting cycles longer than one year.
Development properties are classified as current agsdtgey are intended for sale in the Group’s
normal operating cycle.
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Properties in the course of development

Group
201¢ 201z
$00C $00C
Land cos 477,21 476,98
Development cost incurred-date 124,02: 49,14:
Interest and othe 23,51 16,17¢
624,754 542,297
Add: Attributable profi 79,85: 37,65¢
Less: Progress billings received and receiv (294,641 (182,413
409,96« 397,54.

Represented by

Propertie in the course of developmiin Singapor 383,72. 371,59¢
Propertie in the course of developmiin Chine 26,24. 25,94«
409,96« 397,54.

The following table provides information on properties ofchitrevenue is recognised on transfer

of significant risks and rewards of ownership at comptetand as construction progresses
respectively:

Group
201« 201z
$'000 $'000
(i) Transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownerslp
at completion:
Land cos 24,87" 24,63¢
Development cost incurred-date 80z 794
Interest and othe 565 514
26,242 25,94
(i) Continuous transfer of significant risks and rewards of
ownership as construction progresses:
Cost incurred pluattributable prof 678,365 554,01.
Less: Progress billings received and receiv (294,641) (182,413
383,722 371,59
409,96« 397,54.

Finance costs of $4,948,000 (2013: $4,369,000) was capitaliseng the year at effective interest
rate ranging from 1.1% to 1.4% per annum (2013: 1.1%384 per annum) [note 23].

Details of collateral

As at 31 December 2014, development properties amounti$g83,722,000 (2013: $371,599,000)
included in the above balances were mortgaged to Hankscure credit facilities for the Group.

Information relating to the Group’s loans and borrowirggsgisclosed in note 13 to the financial
statements.
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List of development properties

As at 31 December 2014, the development properties held byahp &re as follows:

Estimated Year  Group’s

Name of Land gross Completed,  effective
property/ Description/ area floor area estimatec equity
location planned use Held by Tenure (sg. m) (sg. m) completion interest
Properties in the course of development
Seletar Park Condominium  Asplenium 99 years 17,456 26,862 2015 100%
Residence, of 276 units Land from 2011
Seletar Road (267 units Pte Ltd
Singapore booked)
Cluny Park Condominium  Shelford Freehold 4,544 6,997 2016 100%
Residence, of 52 units Properties
Cluny Park Road (19 units Pte Ltd
Singapore booked)
Sennett Residence, Condominium/ Clerodendrum 99 years 8,664 33,354 2015 100%
Pheng Geck townhouses Land from 2011
Avenue of 332 units and Pte Ltd
Singapore three shop units

(304 units

booked)
Land in Jin'an Residential Fujian Ji'Xing 70 years 163,740 * * 100%
District, Fuzhou, Real Estate  from 1994
Fujian Province, Development
China Co. Ltd
Land adjacentto  Mainly Qingdao 70 years 119,244 o *x 100%
Huangjiahe Residential Shenyang (residential)/
Reservaoir, Property 40 years
Shandong Co. Ltd. (commercial
Province, China from

2011/ 2013

Completed properties held for sale
Lakeside Ville 172 units of Habitat 70 years 35,643 41,584 2010 100%
Phase I, apartments, Properties from
Qingpu district townhouses, and(Shanghai) 1997
Shanghai 8 units of Ltd
China commercial units

(168 units sold)

* Pending renewal of expired certificate for construction sitping (Refer to disclosure below)
** Master plans are in progress

Land in Fuzhou Jin’an District, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, China

Included in the development properties was a carrying amoof $15,053,000
(2013: $14,904,000) relating to a land parcel acquired in 2009 in FuZhma with an expired
certificate for the construction site planning. The Groagp dpplied to the relevant authorities for
its renewal in 2013. At as 31 December 2014, no impairmetiteovalue of the land was deemed
necessary as the recoverable amount, based on value-mr-ube forecasted sale price of the
development site, is in excess of its cost.

-52-



9 Property, plant and equipment

Note
Group

Cost or valuation

At 1 January 201

Exchange differences on consolida
Acquisition of subsidiay 2¢
Additions

Disposal

Write-offs

Reclassificatio in betwee

At 31 December 20:

At 1 January 201

Exchange differences on consolida
Additions

Disposal

Write-offs

Revaluatiol

Transfer to investment prope 1C
At 31 December 20:

Comprising

At 31 December 20:
At cos
At valuatior

At 31 December 201
At cos
At valuatior

Leasehold
Building land, buildings Plant
on and and Motor
freehold land improvements equipment vehicles Total

$00C $00C $00C $00C $00C
49¢ 10,73 7,98 86¢ 20,08:
(17,945 5€ (2,658 (4 (20,551
383,61 - 3C42¢ - 414,04C
- 6 60€ 21¢ 831
- (5,264 (32) - (5,296
- (245, (809, - (1,054
- (333 141 19z -
366,17 4,95: 3E,65¢ 1,27¢ 408,057
49¢ 12,24 7,97: 96t 21,67¢
- 64z (80) 3 56&
- 17c 482 27 67¢
- (1,235 (338 (126, (1,699
- (59) (49) - (108
- 5,63( - - 5,63(
- (6,659 - - (6,659
49¢ 10,73 7,98: 86¢ 20,08:
- 4,95: 35,65¢ 1,27¢ 41,887
366,17( - - - 366,17(
366,17 4,95: 3E,65¢ 1,27¢ 408,057
49¢ 10,73 7,98¢ 86¢ 20,08
- - 3 - 3
49¢ 10,73 7,98: 86¢ 20,08:
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Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

Building Leaseholc
on land, buildings Plant
freehold and and Motor
Note land improvements  equipment vehicles Total
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 201 - 1,414 6,320 570 8,304
Exchange differences on consolidation - 52 (1,290) 4) (1,242)
Depreciation 25 298 20 643 117 1,078
Disposals - 2 (29) - (31)
Write-offs - (245) (791) - (1,036)
Reclassification in between - (333) 123 210 -
At 31 December 20: 298 906 4,976 893 7,073
At 1 January 201 - 2,387 6,251 603 9,241
Exchange differences on consolidation - 103 (59) (6) 38
Depreciation 25 - 101 511 87 699
Disposals - (884) (334) (114) (1,332)
Write-offs - (57) (49) - (106)
Transfer to investment property 10 - (236) - - (236)
At 31 December 20: - 1,414 6,320 570 8,304
Accumulated impairment
At 1 January 201 - 8,279 - - 8,279
Exchange differences on consolidation - 81 - - 81
Disposals - (5,262) - - (5,262)
At 31 December 20: - 3,098 - - 3,098
At 1 January 201 - 7,787 - - 7,787
Exchange differences on consolidation - 492 - - 492
At 31 December 20: - 8,279 - - 8,279
Carrying amount
At 31 December 20: 365,872 949 30,682 383 397,886
At 31 December 20: 498 1,040 1,667 299 3,504

Included in the freehold land, buildings and improvements ehbilel land with carrying amount
of $197,463,000 which is not subject to depreciation.

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of its propertyyt@ad equipment at the end of each
reporting year to determine whether there is any indicatien those assets have suffered
impairment loss. No impairment loss was recognised in 2801d 2013 as a result of such

assessment.

Transfer to investment property

In 2013, a leasehold building in Shanghai with carrying amofi#783,000 was transferred to
investment property due to change in use. The transfermeale at a fair value of $6,423,000
[note 10]. The resultant revaluation increase of $5,630,860te related deferred tax liabilities
of $1,407,000 were recognised in other comprehensive income2g@iote
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Details of collateral

As at 31 December 2014, property, plant and equipmentirating to $394,414,000 (2013: $Nil)
included in the above balances were mortgaged to bankswagtyséar borrowings. Information
relating to the Group’s loans and borrowings is disclasemte 13 to the financial statements.

Fair value measurement of hotel properties held under GHG (note 29)

The Group’s hotel properties held under GHG (including freelaold and buildings) are stated at
their revalued amounts, being the fair value at the dteevaluation, less any subsequent
accumulative depreciation and subsequent accumulative imgdirtoss. The fair value
measurement is based on valuation carried out by indepewdlerdrs, who have appropriate
qualification and recent experience in the fair valuasuoeement of the properties in the relevant
locations.

The Group classified fair value measurement using avédire hierarchy that reflects the nature
and complexity of the significant inputs used in making theasurement. As at end of
31 December 2014, the fair value measurement of the Grooggbgroperties is classified within
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

There were no transfers between different levels duhie year. Details of valuation techniques and
significant unobservable inputs used in the fair valeasurement as at 31 December 2014 are as
follows:

Valuation Methodology Significant unobservable
Name of property inputs (Level 3) Range
Grand Direct Comparison Method Per hotel roor# $515,500 - $537,000
Hyatt Melboqrne, Capitalisation Capitalisation rat® 7.0%
121-131 Collins Street Approach
Melbourne, Victoria
Discounted Cash Flow Discount rat® 9.75% - 10.75%
Approach Terminal yiel® rate 6.75% - 7.75%
Hyatt Direct Comparison Method  Per hotel ro&m $268,500 - $295,300
Regency Perth
87-123 Adelaide Terrace East  Capitalisation Approach Capitalisation rate 8.5%
Perth
Western Australia Discounted Cash Flow Discount rat@ 10.50% - 11.50%
Approach Terminal yield rat@ 7.50% - 8.50%

@ Any significant isolated increases (decreased)ésd inputs would result in a significantly higtiewer) fair value measurement.
@ Any significant isolated increases (decreased)asé inputs would result in a significantly lowleigber) fair value measurement

-BE .-



List of hotel properties

The carrying amount of the hotel properties held by Ga$¢Gat 31 December 2014 included in
Property, plant and equipment are set out below. Thehateproperties are accounted for under
investment properties [note 10].

Group’s
effective
Name of Land area equity 2014
Property Description Tenure (sg. m) interest $000
Grand Located at the “Paris end” of Collindreehold 5,776 100% 289,182
Hyatt Melbourne Street and its intersection with Russell
Australia * Street. The Property is of 34 levels
featuring one of Melbourne’s largest
5-star hotels, complete with
retail/commercial space. The carrying
value of the retail/commercial space
has been disclosed as investment
property (note 10).
Hyatt Regency By Swan River and within walkingFreehold 25,826 100% 102,890
Perth distance from the central business
Australia * district. The Property is an integrated

5-star hotel, office, retail and parking
complex. The hotel is built over 9
levels. The carrying value of the
office, retail and parking complex has
been disclosed as investment property
(note 10).

392,072

* Acquired as a business combination in 2014 (note 29).
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10 Investment properties

Investment
Completed properties
investment under
Note properties redevelopment Total
$'00C $'000 $00C
Group
At 1 January 201 479,77. 344,32 824,15
Exchange differences on consolida (11,786 - (11,786
Acquisition of subsidiey 29 253,32! - 253,32
Development cost 1,46( 12,540 14,00
Net gain from fair value adjustmer 24 3,14¢ 12C 3,26¢
At 31 December 20: 725,92( 357,01 1,082,93.
At 1 January 201 117,41( 319,01! 436,42!
Acquisition of subsidiar 29 350,00( - 350,00(
Transfe 9 6,42: - 6,42:
Development cost - 13,89¢ 13,89¢
Net gain from fair value adjustmer 24 5,94( 11,44: 17,38:
At 31 December 20: 479,77 344,35; 824,12!
Company
At 31 December 20: 49¢ - 49¢
At 31 December 2013 498 - 498
Group
201« 201z
$00C $00C
Represented by
Completed investment propert in Singapor 477,95 473,35l
Investment properties under developr in Singapor 357,01. 344,35.
Completednvestment properti in Australie 241,48 -
Completerinvestment propertitin Ching 6,48 6,42:
1,082,93. 824,12!

Fair value adjustment

The Group’s investment properties are stated at estinfatedalue as at 31 December 2014,
based on valuation carried out by independent professionagrsalwho have the appropriate
gualification and experience in the location and categotlgeoproperties being valued. Based on
these valuations, fair value gain amounted to $3,264,000 (2013: $00@BWwas recognised in
profit or loss in accordance witfRS 4(Qnote 24].

The Group classified fair value measurement using avédire hierarchy that reflects the nature
and complexity of the significant inputs used in making thasueement. As at 31 December
2014, the fair value measurement of the Group’s investmenéiepis classified within Level 3
of the fair value hierarchy.
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There were no transfers between different levels duhie year. Details of valuation techniques and
significant unobservable inputs used in the fair valeasurement as at 31 December 2014 are as
follows:

Significant unobservable

Name of property Valuation Methodology inputs (Level 3) Range
Singapore
Robinson Point Direct Comparison Method Price per square metre of net$23,400 — $30,500
39 Robinson Road lettable ared
Singapore )
Investment Method Net income margin* 75% — 84%
Capitalisation rat® 3.0% -3.75%
The Oxley Direct Comparison Method  Price per square metre of $21,300 — $32,300
9 Oxley Rise strata floor are&
#01-00, #02-00, #03-00
Singapore
Century Warehouse Direct Comparison Method Price per square metre of  $6,800 — $10,500
31 strata units (out of a strata floor are&

total of 35 units) of the
building 100E Pasir
Panjang Road

Singapore
L&Y Building Direct Comparison Method  Price per square metre of $6,400 — $6,700
#01-03, #01-04, #05-01 strata floor are& $6,700 — $11,000 (ground
59 Jalan Pemimpin floor)
Singapore
Far East Finance Building Direct Comparison Method  Price per square metre of $25,300 — $35,300
#11-01/02 strata floor are&
14 Robinson Road
Singapore
Robinson Tower redevelopment site Residual Landi&/al Gross development value  Office: $23,400 — $35,300
Method per square metfe Retail: $64,700 — $68,900
Developer proff®) 10%
Land sale per square metre $9,600 — $12,000
per plot ratié"
Construction cost per square $5,800
metre of gross floor ar@a
Total development cost $8,700
(exclude land cost) per
square metre of gross floor
ared®*
Remaining construction 2.5 years
period?
Australia
Fortescue Centre & Direct Comparison Method  Price per square metreedf $5,500 — $7,700
Carpark (being part of the Hyatt lettable are@
Regency complex) T T
23 Plain Street, East Perth Capitalisation Method Capitalisation rdte 8.5% - 9.5%
Australia Discounted Cash Flow Discount rat@ 9.0% — 9.5%
Method Terminal yield rat@ 9.0% - 9.5%
Commercial Direct Comparison Method  Price per Bay Carpark: $26,600 —
Centre & Carpark within $105,700
the Grand Hyatt complex o o .
123 Collins Street, Melbourne Capitalisation Capitalisation rat® Retail: 5.75% — 6.75%
Australia Method
Discounted Cash Flow Discount rat® Retail: 8.00% — 8.50%
Method Carpark: 8.25% — 8.75%
Terminal yield rat@ Retail: 6.25% — 6.75%
Carpark: 7.25% — 7.75%
China
N0.2950 ChunShen Road Direct Comparison Method Price per square metre of ~ $1,800-$4,700
Shanghai, China gross floor are&
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There were no transfebetween different levelin 2013 Details of valuation techniques a
significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value mesmumeas at 31 December 2013

were as follows:

Name of property

Valuation Methodology

Significant unobservable

inputs (Level 3) Range

Singapore
Robinson Point
39 Robinson Road

Direct Comparison Method

Price per square metre of ~ $21,800 — $34,600

net lettable arédl

Singapore )
Investment Method Net income margin* 72% - 84%
Capitalisation rat® 3.0%-3.75%
The Oxley Direct Comparison Method Price per square metre of ~ $23,000 — $30,900
9 Oxley Rise strata floor are&

#01-00, #02-00, #03-00
Singapore

Investment Method

Net income margin* 86% — 90%

Capitalisation rat® 3% - 3.25%

Century Warehouse

31 strata units (out of a total
of 35 units) of the building
100E Pasir Panjang Road
Singapore

Direct Comparison Method

Price per square metre of ~ $7,200 — $10,100

strata floor are&

L&Y Building

#01-03, #01-04, #05-01
59 Jalan Pemimpin
Singapore

Direct Comparison Method

Price per square metre of $5,800 — $6,500
strata floor are& $12,200 (ground floor)

Far East Finance Building
#11-01/02

14 Robinson Road
Singapore

Direct Comparison Method

Price per square metre of $21,900 — $23,300
strata floor are&

Robinson Tower redevelopment site

Residual Landi&/al
Method

Office: $23,700 - $42,500
Retail: $53,800 - $66,700

Gross development value
per square metfe

Developer profi®) 10%

Land sale per square metre $9,600 - $12,000
per plot ratié)

Construction cost per $5,800
square metre of gross floor

are®)

Total development cost $9,000

(exclude land cost) per
square metre of gross floor
ared®#

Construction peridd Approximately 3 years

China

N0.2950 Chun Shen Road,
Shanghai

China

cost

Direct Comparison Method

Price per square metre of $1,800-$4,700
gross floor are&

Net income margin = net property income/annuakgirental income
Total development cost includes construction, goefessional fees, interest cost, land holdiogt @and other development related

@ Any significant isolated increases (decreased)ésd inputs would result in a significantly higtiewer) fair value measurement.
@ Any significant isolated increases (decreased)asd inputs would result in a significantly lowleigber) fair value measurement
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Generally, a change in the assumption made for thmagstl net income margin (per square metre
per annum) is accompanied by a similar change in toeria growth per annum and capitalisation
rate.

Operating lease disclosure

Rental income from the Group's investment properties wiiere all leased under operating
leases amounted to $17,102,000 (2013: $8,817,000) [note 21]. Dpechting expenses
(including repairs and maintenance) related to thesetimees properties amounted to $4,279,000
(2013: $2,106,000). Information on operating lease commitmentsadsed in note 31 to the
financial statements.

Details of collateral

As at 31 December 2014, investment properties amouttifé@, 076,445,000 (2013: $817,702,000)
included in the above balances were mortgaged to bankswagyséar borrowings. Information
relating to the Group’s loans and borrowings is disclasemte 13 to the financial statements.

List of completed investment properties

The carrying amounts of completed investment propertias hethe Group as at 31 December
2014 are as follows:

Group’s
Strata effective

Name of floor area  equity 2014 2013
property Description Tenure (sg. m) interest $'000 $'000
Singapore
Robinson Point* A 21-storey Freehold 15,7247 100% 351,500 350,000
39 Robinson Road commercial
Singapore building with 3-

levels of car park
The Oxley 3 floors of Freehold 2,770 100% 63,300 63,300
9 Oxley Rise commercial space
#01-00, #02-00, #03-00within a 10-storey
Singapore building including

residential units
Century Warehouse 31 out of a total of Freehold 4,690 100% 40,400 38,000
100E Pasir Panjang 35 strata units of a
Road 8-storey industrial
Singapore building
L&Y Building 3 out of a total of 999 years from 2,285 100% 13,450 13,450
#01-03, #01-04, #05-0124 strata units of a 1885
59 Jalan Pemimpin 5-storey industrial
Singapore building
Far East Finance 1 strata unit (floor) 999 years from 402 100% 9,300 8,600
Building within a 13- storey 1884
#11-01/02 commercial
14 Robinson Road building and a
Singapore basement
Australia
Fortescue Centre & A 3 level Freehold 23,415 100% 125,657 -

Carpark (being part of commercial
the Hyatt Regency buildings and plaza

complex)* level shops and

23 Plain Street, East  suites with 2-levels
Perth of basement car
Australia park
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Group’s

Strata effective

Name of floor area  equity 2014 2013
property Description Tenure (sg. m) interest $'000 $'000
Australia
Commercial Centre & 4 Collins St retail  Freehold 3,024 100% 115,826 -
Carparkwithin the shops consisting of
Grand Hyatt complex* 2 floors each, a bar
123 Collins Street, & function room.
Melbourne A further 7 retail
Australia areas in and around

Russell St. With 4-

levels of basement

car park
China
N0.2950 ChunShen A 3-storey 58 years from 2,170 100% 6,487 6,423
Road Shanghai commercial 2008
China building

725,920 479,773

* Acquired as business combination [note29]
N Gross floor area

List of investment property under redevelopment

The carrying amount of investment property under redevelopateat 31 December 2014 is as
follows:

Planned  Group’s

gross floor effective
Name of area equity 2014 2013
property Description Tenure (sg. m) interest $'000 $'000
Singapore
Robinson Tower  Proposed 28-storey ~ 999-years from 24,086 100% 357,012 344,352

redevelopment site commercial building 1884 &1885
comprising office (Lots 167X,
tower, retail podium, 616W, 691X,
sky terrace and an 99280A,
underground 99287W and
mechanised carpark  99289P)

99-years from
2013 (Lots
485M, 488P)

The Group is redeveloping the previous Robinson Towersnitsxaand the immediately adjacent
International Factors Building as a single commercial a@greknt as indicated above.

Finance costs of $2,932,000 (2013: $2,599,000) was capitaliseng the year at effective interest
rate of 1.9% per annum (2013: 1.9% per annum) [note 23].
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11 Investments in subsidiaries

Company
201« 201z
$00C $00C
Quoted shares, at c 115,97t 115,97t
Unquoted shares, at ¢ 548,91 548,91
Deemed investment arising from financial guaran
provided to banks on behalf of subsidiaries 46,176 45,014
711,06 709,90
Less: Allowance for impairment Ic (136,767 (125,527
574,30. 584,38
Fair value of investment in a subsidit
for which there were published price quotations 28,146 33,775

Details of the Company’s significant subsidiariesdiselosed in note 34 to the financial statements.

Financial guarantees

The Company provided guarantees to banks for credit feziltigtained by certain of its
subsidiaries and recorded a deemed financial guarantdaci@®e in accordance with FRS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. d€bened income is amortised over the
period of the guarantees. The unamortised financial gteeafee of $13,492,000 (2013:
$20,538,000) is disclosed under the Company’s non-trade payables iddntdethe financial
statements. The guarantee fee was not charged byoiimpa@y to the subsidiaries. The full
amount of the guarantee fee is deemed to be additionatnmeasin subsidiaries.

Movements in allowance for impairment

Company
2014 2013
$00C $00C
Allowance for impairment loss
At 1 January (125,527) (121,416)
Allowance forimpairment los (16,518 (20,147
Reversal of impairme 5,27¢ 9,91¢
(11,240 (10,231
Liguidation of subsidiarie - 6,12(
At 31 Decembe (136,767 (125,527

During the year, impairment loss amounting to $16,518,000 (2013: $20,14¥@60nade in
respect of the Company’s investment in certain subsidiadeseduce the carrying value of
investment to the recoverable amounts. This includes pairiment loss of $9,400,000 (2013:
$Nil) was made for a subsidiary in respect of managementgstion to liquidate the subsidiary
within the next twelve months. In addition, there was arsaveof impairment amounting to
$5,278,000 (2013: $9,916,000) in relation to certain subsidiaries au@ctease in their
recoverable amounts. The above assessment is after takmmgdcount the current financial
position of the subsidiaries.
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Wholly-owned subsidiaries

Information about the composition of wholly-owned subsidiaofethe Group as at 31 December
2014 is as follows:

Country of incorporation and ~ Number of wholly-owned

Principal activity Operation subsidiaries
201¢ 201z
Development of properties fi  Singapor and Chin 27 27

sale, property investment and
provision of property
management services.

Investment in hotels i Australie 4 2
Australia through Grand Hotel
Grand (“GHG")

Investments in GulTech, Singapore and Malay: 5 5
printed circuit boards

manufacturer with operations in

Singapore and China, and Pan-

West, a retailer of golf-related

products.

36 34

Non-wholly owned subsidiaries

Information about the composition of non-wholly owned subsiebaof the Group as at 31
December 2014 is as follows:

Country of incorporation and  Number of non-wholly owned

Principal activity Operation subsidiaries
201¢ 2013
Trading and marketing « Singapor 1 1

selected industrial commodities,
distribution of tyres and
retreading of tyres

Property developme Singapor 1 1

Manufactur and sale o Malaysie 1 1
polypropylene woven bags
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Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have mataoatcontrolling interests to the Group

are disclosed below:

Country of
incorporation Profit /(loss)
and principal  Effective equity interest allocated Accumulated non-
place of & voting power held by to non-controlling controlling
Name of subsidiary business non-controlling interests interests interests
2014 201: 2014 201: 2014 201:
$'00C $'00C $'00C $'00C
SP Corporation Limite ~ Singapor 19.8% 19.8% 422 47¢ 9,425 8,811
and subsidiaries
Individually immateria
subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests (5) 578 704 713
417 1,05¢ 10,12¢ 9,52¢

The summarised financial information of SP Corporatiomited and subsidiaries on a 100% basis is

set out below:

Current asse

Non-current asse

Curren liabilities
Nor-current liabilitie:

Equity attributable to owner

Revenue for the ye
Net profit for the yee

201¢ 201¢

$000 $000
68,44¢ 70,84
305 43¢
(21,12) (26,75
(26) (35)
47,59 44,49
131,91 152,59:
2,131 2,40:
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12 Investments in equity accounted investees

Group
201¢ 201z
$00C $00C
Unquoted shares, at ¢ 72,24( 178,21t
Exchange differences on consolida 771 92
Share of po-acquisition results and reserv
net of distributions receive (10,030) 29,85:
62,98 208,15!

Equity accounted investees

On 2 December 2014, the Group ceased equity accounting farllgutonsolidated the results of
Grand Hotel Group (“GHG") following its acquisition of GF&Iemaining 50% interest (note 29).

The Group equity accounted for Gul Technologies SingaporétBt€GulTech”) and Pan-West
(Private) Limited. The Group’s interest in GulTederieased from 43.3% to 44.5% during the
year following GulTech’s selective capital reduction as eygd by its members and the High
Court of Singapore pursuant to Section 78G of the Companig€apt 50). The Group’s interest
in Pan-West remained at 49% (2013: 49%). Details of theg® ®ignificant associates as at 31
December 2014 are disclosed in note 35 to the financiahstats.

The Group’s share of net assets and total comprehenswee of equity accounted investees are
set out below:

Group
Note 201¢ 201z

$'000 $'000
Share of net asse
At 1 Januan 208,15! 210,29t
Exchange differences on consolida 3,C73 (17,833
Change in interest ia joint venture 29 (167,297) -
Share of total comprehensive income (refer to be 27,85: 20,42:
Adjustment arising from selective capital reductiol (136; -

an associa

Distributions (8,670 (4,727
At 31 Decembe 62,98 208,15!
Share of total comprehensive incon
Share of results before fair value adjustm 19,98¢ 14,757
Share of fair value gain on investment prope 24 3,07¢ 9,01(
Share of fair value gain cfinancial instrumen 24 12¢ 264

3,20¢ 9,27¢
Share of net profi 23,19( 24,03
Share of asset revaluation resi 28 2,17: (6,000
Share of cash flow hedging acco 28 2,48¢ 2,39(
Share of other comprehensincomé/(loss) 4,66: (3,610
Share of total comprehensive income for the 27,852 20,42:

Details of asset revaluation reserve and cash flow hedgsggve are disclosed in note 19 to the
financial statements. Share of capital commitmentsgaity accounted investees are disclosed in
note 31 to the financial statements.
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GulTech

The summarised financial information of GulTech driD8% basis is set out below:

201¢ 201z

$00C $'00C
Curren asset 246,22 228,27
Non-curren asset 218,61 138,57
Current liabilitie: (160,708 (122,921
Nor-curren liabilities (39,88) (6,506€)
Non-controlling interest (109,497 (111,971
Equity attributable to owner 154,75! 125,44t
Revenue for the ye 347,35: 328,01
Net profit for the yee 26,087 31,26°

Pan-West

In 2013, the Group recognised its share of further lossesnAWRest of $5,853,000 being the

Group’s share of corporate guarantees given to certaks amexchange for bank balances drawn
by Pan-West and its subsidiary. The unrecognised accuohltstees at the end of the reporting
period was $2,687,000 (2013: $679,000).

13 Loans and borrowings

Group Company
201¢ 201: 201/ 201:
$'00C $'00C $'00C $'00C

Short-term borrowings
Bank loans 195347 15005C - -

Finance lease: - 2 - -
195,34 150052 - -
Long-term borrowings
Bank loan 1,070,25C 767,604 - -
Notes issuecunder MTN Programm 79,27¢ - 79,27¢ -
1,149,52! 767,60: 79,27" -
Total borrowings 1,344,87. 917,65t 79,27" -
Represented b
Interes-bearing liabilitie: 1,348,03 919,72 80,00( -
Capitalised finance co: (3,167 (2,064 (725 -
1,344,87. 917,65t 79,27" -
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Security profile

Group Company
201« 201¢ 201¢ 201z
$00C $00C $00C $'00C
Secured borrowings
Current 195,34 150,05: - -
Nonr-curren 1,070,25! 767,60« - -
1,265,59 917,65t - -
Unsecured borrowings
Non-curren 79,275 - 79,27¢ -
Total borrowings 1,344,87. 917,65t 79,27~ -

Multicurrency Medium Term Note Programme

The Company has in place a S$900 million Multicurrency MedienmNote Programme (“MTN
Programme”) under which it can issue notes in seriesaoches and may be denominated in
Singapore dollars or other currency deemed appropriate e

On 14 October 2014, the Company issued S$80 million of fixedneatts (the “Notes”). The
Notes are unsecured, bear a fixed interest rate of 4.50%nmeim payable semi-annually in
arrear. The Notes will mature on 14 October 2019.

Details of collateral

Loans and borrowings from banks were secured over the Groagtisand bank balances [note 5],
trade and other receivables [note 6], inventories [note Ajelde@ment properties [note 8],
property, plant and equipment [note 9], investment propdriee 10] and covered by corporate
guarantees [note 32].

Interest rate profile

Group Company

201¢ 201: 201¢ 201:

$'00C $'00C $'00C $'00C
Loans and borrowings
Fixedrate- Finance leas - 2 - -
Fixed rat 79,275 - 79,27¢ -
Variable rat 1,265,59 917,65: - -
Total borrowings 1,344,87. 917,65t 79,27~ -

The Group’s exposure to fair value interest rate risllisslosed in note 33(b) to the financial
statements as at 31 December 2013.

Fair value

The fair value of the current portion of the Group’s loamsl borrowings approximate their
carrying amounts at the end of the reporting periodusecthey are short term in nature. The fair
value of the non-current portion of the Group’s loans andolangs approximate their carrying
amounts at the end of the reporting period as their gsitatates approximate current market
interest rates on or near the end of the reporting peftodther details regarding foreign currency
denomination and maturity dates, contractual and effeatiezest rates are disclosed in Note
33(a) and 33(d) respectively to the financial statements.
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14 Trade and other payables

Group Company
Note 201¢ 201: 201¢ 201:
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Trade

Trade payable 37,77¢ 38,95¢ 22¢ 281
Amounts due to related pari 16 5,48E 6,90: - -
43,26! 45,85¢ 22¢ 281

Non-trade
Other creditor 23,005 4,65t 277 264
Other provision 5,57 328 - -
Advanced hilling 4.67€ 2,74 - -
Accrued operating expen: 21,777 25,26¢ 907 844
Accruedinterest expens 2,49¢ 487 77¢ -
Financial guarante 11 - - 13,49: 20,53¢
Amounts due to related part 16 34¢ 344 1C 7
63,87< 33,82( 15,46! 21,65!
107,134 79,67" 15,69: 21,93¢

The Group is granted various credit terms on itsi@sges from its large number of suppliers who are
geographically dispersed. Trade payables are generallyto 120 days (2013: 14 to 90 days) credit
term. The Group manages liquidity risk of trade ja& primarily by maintaining sufficient cash
and credit facilities [note 33].

The carrying amount of trade and other payables appraxithatr fair values at the end of the

reporting periods. Further details regarding the contrbend effective interest rates, maturity
dates and foreign currency denomination are disclosed@33ato the financial statements.
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15 Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries

Company
2014 2013
$'000 $'000
Amounts due from subsidiaries:
- nor-trade 386,967 300,34!
Less: Allowance for impairmel (20,650) (11)
366,312 300,33:
Amounts due t subsidiaries
- nor-trade (322,278 (320,734
Allowance for impairment
An analysis of allowance for impairment is as follows:
Company
201¢ 2012
$'000 $'000
Allowance for impairment
At 1 January (11) (79,914
Allowance mad (20,642 -
Write back of allowance 3 79,90:
(20,639 79,90:
At 31 Decembe (20,650 (11)

The non-trade amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries ameeaumned, interest-free and repayable
on demand. During the year, allowance for impairna#r$20,642,000 (2013: $Nil) and a reversal
of allowance for impairment loss of $3,000 (2013: $79@uB, was made for amount due from
subsidiaries. The above assessment is after takingatount the current financial position of the
subsidiaries. The allowance for impairment of $20,642,000 wade rfor a subsidiary due to
decrease in net asset value of underlying interest a¢ploeting date.
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16 Amounts due from/(to) related parties

Group Company
Note 201« 201: 201¢ 201:
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Amounts due from:
Associate:
Associates, nc-trade - 9 - -
Other related parties
Other related parties, tre 4,001 1,01z - -
Other related parties, n-trade 384 821 - -
Refundable deposits with other rele
parties 7,939 7,575 - -
12,32 9,40¢ - -
Total 12,32 9,41¢ - -
Presented a
Amounts due from related parties, tre 6 4,001 1,01z - -
Amounts due from related partie
non-trade 6 8,323 8,405 - -
12,32 9,41¢ - -
Amounts due to:
Associate:
Associates, trac 3) 3) - -
Associates, nc-trade (10 (7) (10 (7)
13 (10) (10 (1)
Other related parties
Other related parties, tre (5,482 (6,899 - -
Other related parties, n-trade (336 (337 - -

(5,818 (7,236 - -

Total (5,831 (7,246 (10 (7)

Presented a

Amounts due to related parties, tr: 14 (5,485 (6,902 - -
Amounts due to related parties, -trade 14 (346 (344 (10) (7)
(5,831 (7,246 (10) (7
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The Company’s major shareholder is Nuri HoldingsR&) Ltd (“Nuri”), incorporated in Singapore.
Related companies are the companies in which thelsblders of Nuri and their family members
have a controlling interest in. Related partiesuthe subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures, related
companies, Nuri and directors of the Company and #ssiociates.

Included in amounts due to other related partiesetatl non-trade, are mainly balances with
related companies. Further details regarding tctiogses with related parties are disclosed in note 30
to the financial statements.

Amounts due from associates

The trade and non-trade amounts due from associsgesnaecured, interest-free and repayable
within normal trade terms.

Amounts due from/(to) other related parties

Included in the non-trade amounts due from related parsies refundable deposit of
US$6,000,000 or equivalent to $7,939,000 (2013: $7,575,000) placed by SP Cieda
subsidiary of the Group to secure coal supply allocation wittbal mine which is a related
company as defined above.

The deposit is subject to yearly renewal by mutual agreeinetween the two parties. It is
secured by a corporate guarantee issued by the holding comiptueyrelated company and bears
an effective interest of 4.58% (2013: 4.67%) per annum. Thaesddms been assessed as having
been placed with a counterparty that is creditworthy accordingly no allowance for potential
non-recovery of this deposit is required.

The remaining trade and non-trade amounts due from/(b&r oklated parties were unsecured,
interest-free, and repayable within normal trade terms.
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17 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax at the end of the reporting period atasif the following:

Group
201 201z
$'00C $'00C
Deferred tax assets and liabilities arising fror
Accelerated tax depreciation compared to accountipgedetior 39¢ 467
Profit recognised on percentage of completion of dewveémnt
properties for sale 7,61¢ 1,61
Fair value changes of property, plant and equip 1,421 1,40
Foreign income not remitted and which will be subjedtix
if remitted in the future 23,43( 22,44
Unutilised tax losse (348 (2,331
Other: (1,680 (105
30,83" 23,49!
Represented I:
Deferred tax ass¢ (4,179 -
Deferred tax liabilitie 35,01¢ 23,49:
30,83" 23,49!

Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised by tleiGand the movements thereon during the
current and prior reporting periods are as following:

Revaluation Foreign
Accelerated Deferred of property, income Unutilised
tax  development plant and not tax
Note depreciation costs equipment  remitted losses Others Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Group
At 1 January 2014 463 1,613 1,407 22,444 (2,331) (105) 23,491
Exchange differences

on consolidation (6) - 14 (1,201) (5) (50) (1,248)
Acquisition of
subsidiay 29 - (2,091)# (2,091)
Charged to profit

or loss 26 (62) 6,006 - 1,595 1,988 566 10,093
Charged to other

comprehensive

income 28 - - - 592 - - 592
At 31 December 2014 395 7,619 1,421 23,430 (348) (1,680) 30,837
At 1 January 2013 516 22,634 (4,046) (105) 18,999
Exchange differences

on consolidation (59) (2,905) 577 (2,387)
Charged to profit

or loss 26 6 1,613 3,485 1,138 6,242
Charged/(credited)

to other

comprehensive

income 28 - - 1,407 (770) - - 637
At 31 December 2013 463 1,613 1,407 22,444 (2,331) (105) 23,491

# Acquired as a business combination in 2014 (note 29). Amelateés to deferred tax assets arising from employee
benefits.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are netted bfmthere is a legally enforceable right to offset a
when the deferred income taxes relate to the sanaitbgrity.
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Deferred tax liabilities relating to equity interestGHG

Deferred tax liabilities included an amount of $25,576,08013: $20,113,000) on account of a
provision made by the Group to recognise the taxabifes gm the excess of the fair value of net
assets of GHG over the tax cost base of the sesuntGHG.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At the end of the reporting year, the aggregate amoutengborary differences associated with
undistributed earnings of subsidiaries for which deferradigilities have not been recognised
was $236,000 (2013: $223,000). No liability has been recognised ectesfpthese differences
because the Group is in a position to control the timing ofdtersal of temporary differences,
and it is probable that such differences will not revergbe foreseeable future.

Deferred tax benefits not recognised

At the end of the reporting year, the Group had, subjedig@gireement by the tax authorities,
unutilised tax losses of $47,824,000 (2013: $51,290,000) which awexilable for carry forward
and set-off against future taxable income. A deferagdasset had been recognised on tax losses
of $12,663,000 (2013: $7,770,000), whereas no deferred tax asset hagdoggrised in respect

of the remaining tax losses of $35,161,000 (2013: $43,520,000) dueunpteslictability of the
relevant future profit streams.

At the end of the reporting year, the Group had, subjedig@gireement by the tax authorities,
capital allowances of $2,196,000 (2013: $1,831,000) which wer&bbafor carry forward and
set-off against future taxable income. Future tax benefisng from these unutilised capital
allowances had not been recognised in the financiahstats as there was no reasonable certainty
of their recovery in the future years.

18 Share capital

Group and Company

201¢ 201z 201¢ 201z
Number of ordinary
shares ('000) $'000 $'000
Issued and paid up

At 1 Januarn 1,172, 74 1,161,27 168,19( 164,54!

Shares issued under Scrip Divide
Scheme 3,416 11,463 1,070 3,645
At 31 Decembe 1,176,15 1,172,74 169,26( 168,19(

The Company has a single class of ordinary shad#sssued shares carry one vote per share and
are entitled to receive dividend as and when declayeéble Company. The ordinary shares are fully
paid and have no par value.

Issue of shares

During the year, the Company allotted and issued63340 (2013: 11,462,447) ordinary shares at
an issue price of 31.3 cents (2013: 31.8 cents) per shalgible shareholders who have validly

elected to participate in the Tuan Sing Scrip Divid&Gaheme in respect of the first and final

ordinary dividend of 0.5 cent per share for the fimgnear ended 31 December 2013.
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19 Reserves

Group Company

201« 201z 201¢ 201z

$000 $000 $000 $000

Asset revaluation reser 78,80¢ 76,90¢ - -

Foreign currency translaticaccoun (18,592 (11,384 - -
Other capital reserve

- Nor-distributable capital reser 111052 102,27: 101,26:- 101,26:-

- Cash flow hedging account (717) (2,890) - -

Nonr-distributable capital reser 110,33 99,38: 101,26:- 101,26:-

Revenue reser 463,10¢ 416,58! 253,75¢ 273,22.

633,65! 581,49: 355,02: 374,48!

Revenue reserve

Revenue reserve is used to record the balance airasnavailable for distributions as defined by
regulatory requirements. This is distributable to dhaders as dividend.

Foreign currency translation account

Foreign currency translation account comprises for@gohange differences arising from the

translation of the financial statements of foreigrerations whose functional currencies are different
from the presentation currency of the Company; dsagefrom the translation of monetary items

which form part of the Group’s net investment in igneoperations at the end of the reporting
period.

Asset revaluation reserve

Asset revaluation reserve comprises net cumulative usapl arising from the revaluation of
leasehold land, buildings and improvements held by tleaigs[note 9]. These properties are held
for the purpose of production or supply or goods andcses.

Non-distributable capital reserves

Non-distributable capital reserves comprise capital temuceserve of the Company and share of
enterprise expansion fund reserve of an associatéeth.

Cash flow hedging account

Cash flow hedging account represents the cumulativehaeige in fair value of the effective portion
of the cash flow hedges.
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20 Dividend

Group and Company

201¢ 201z
$'000 $'000
Tax-exempt onetier first and final dividend paid in
respect of the previous year
Casl 4,79¢ 2,161
Share 1,07( 3,64¢
5,86¢ 5,80¢

The directors proposed a tax exempt one-tier first fimal dividend of 0.5 cent per share

(2013: 0.5 cent per share) amounting to $5,881,000 (2013: $3084subject to the shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming Annual General Meetinghef Company, to be paid in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2014. The Tuan Sing Bividend Scheme will be applicable

to this proposed dividend.

21 Revenue
Group
Note 2014 2013

$00C $00C

Sale of produc 137,51 159,12¢
Sale of development propert 184,07! 128,61:
Rental income of investment proper 1C 17,10z 8,811
Hotel operation and related inco 10,271 -
Services render: 5,28 5,331
Other: 51% 38C
354,76! 302,27.

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods and sestipptied. Intra-group revenue is
eliminated on consolidation and is excluded from Group rexerDuring the year, $177,546,000
(2013: $113,982,000) was recognised as revenue based on the perdertagaetion method.
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22 Finance income

Group
201¢ 201z
$00C $'00C
Interest income on bank depo 4,061 4,35¢
Interest incomdrom debtor: 31¢ 17¢
Interest incomdrom related partie: 38( 48(
4,76( 5,01¢
23 Finance costs
Group
Note 201« 201z
$'00C $00C
Interest expense on loans and borrow 16,59¢ 10,77:
Amortisation ofcapitalsed finance cos 46¢€ 27¢
17,06¢ 11,04¢
Less: Amounts capitalis
- Development properti 8 (4,948 (4,369
- Investment properti 1C (2,932 (2,599
(7,880 (6,968
9,18¢ 4,08(

Borrowing costs capitalised as cost of properties undela@went relate to borrowings taken up
to finance each specific project.
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24 Fair value adjustments

Subsidiarie
Share of equity accountinvestee

Represented b

Fair value gain on investment proper
Fair value gain on financial instrum

The fair value adjustment is analysed as follows:

201¢
Fair value gain
on investment properties
Subsidiarie
Share of equity accounted invesi

Fair value gain
on financial instruments

Share of equity accounted investees

201z
Fair value gain/(loss
on investment properties
Subsidiarie
Share of equity accounted invesi

Fair value gain/(loss
on financial instruments
Subsidiarie

Share of equity accounted investees

Group
Note 2014 2012
$'000 $'000
3,26¢ 17,95(
12 3,20¢ 9,27¢
6,46¢ 27,22¢
6,34( 26,39:
12¢ 83z
6,46¢ 27,22¢
Group
Deferred
Note Gross tax Net
$'000 $'000 $'000
10 3,26¢ - 3,26¢
12 3,07¢ (87€) 2,20C
6,34( (87€) 5,464
12 129 (174) (45)
6,469 (1,050) 5,419
10 17,38: - 17,38:
12 9,01( (2,550 6,46(
26,39: (2,550 23,84:
56¢ - 56¢
12 264 (18) 246
833 (18) 815
27,224 (2,568) 24,656
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25 Profit before tax

Other than disclosed elsewhere in these finanedrsients, profit before tax for the year has been
arrived at after charging/(crediting) the following:

Group
Note 201« 201z
$'00C $'00C
Disposal of asse
Net loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3 (1,767)
Plant and equipment written « 18 2
Foreign exchange(gain)/loss, ne (372 1,957
Cost of inventories recognised as an expel 132,72 152,45(
Auditors’ remuneration
Audit fees
- Auditors of the Compat 31¢ 32C
- Other auditor 207 74
Non-audit fee
- Auditors of the Compat 49 56
- Other auditor 14z 21
Directors’ remuneration
Of the Compan
- Salaries and wag 1,45¢ 1,392
Of the subsidiarie
- Salaries and wag 2,18¢ 2,33¢
- Defined contribution pla 55 79
3,708 3,801

Employees benefit expense
(excluding directors’ remuneration)
- Salaries and wag 12,27: 12,47
- Defined contribution plat 80¢ 82¢
- Other: 15 46

13,09¢ 13,34¢
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26 Income tax expenses

Group

Note 201¢ 201z
$00C $00C

Current income te
- Singapor 1,285 1,47¢
- Foreigr 27¢ 1,74«
- Under provision in prior yea 2,69¢ 36
4,25¢ 3,25¢
Withholding tax expen: 35 21¢
Deferred ta 17 10,09: 6,24
14,387 9,71t

Singapore income tax is calculated at 17% (2013: 17%) of thmatetl assessable income for the
year. Taxation for other jurisdictions is calculated tla@ rates prevailing in the relevant
jurisdictions.

The reconciliation between the tax expense reported bhedptoduct of accounting profit
multiplied by the applicable tax rate is as follows:

Group
201¢ 201z
$'000 $'000
Profit before income ta 75,973 62,76¢
Income tax calculated at 17% (2013: 1 1291k 10,67:
Adjustment
Share of results of equ-accountednvestee (3,942 (4,085
Interest in a joir venturt - (94)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpt 2,89« 1,62¢
Tax losses not recognised as deferred tax i 39 284
Tax losses not available for -off against future incon 13 114
Different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in othasgiction: 8,04( 5,21¢
Income that is not subject to- (3,030) (3,026
Utilisation of tax losses and capital allowance previo
unrecognised (4,949) (992)
Under provision in prior yeg 2,69t 36
Withholding ta: expens 35 21¢
Other: (329) (252
14,387 9,71t
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27 Earnings per share

Analysis of the Group’s profit from operations and falue adjustments are as follows:

Group
Before Fair After
fair value value fair value
Note adjustments adjustments adjustments
$00C $00C $00C
201¢
Profit before tax 69,504 6,46¢ 75,973
Income tax expens 26 (13,337) (1,050 (14,387)
Profit for the year 56,167 5,419 61,58¢
Less:
Nor-controlling interest (417) - (417)
Profit attributable to owners of
the Company 55,750 5,419 61,169
201¢
Profit before tax 35,54! 27,22¢ 62,76¢
Income tax expens 26 (7,247 (2,568 (9,715
Profit for the year 28,39¢ 24,65¢ 53,05«
Less:
Non-controlling interest (1,054 - (1,054
Profit attributable to owners of
the Company 27,344 24,656 52,000

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per sttiibutable to the ordinary owners of
the Company is based on the following data:

Group
201¢ 201z
$'000 $'000
Profit attributable to owners of the Company
Before fair value adjustmel 55,75( 27,34«
Fair value adjustmer 5,41¢ 24,65¢
After fair value adjustmen 61,16¢ 52,00(
Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents)
Excluding fair value adjustmel 4.7 2.4
Including fair value adjustmer 5.2 4.t
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (in '000 share
for the purpose of computation of basic and dilutedarnings
per share 1,174,518 1,167,401

There is no dilutive ordinary share in 2014 and 2013.
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28 Other comprehensive income
Group
Before Deferred
Note tax tax  After tax
$'000 $'000 $'000
201¢
Other comprehensive incom
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
Share of asset revaluation reservi
equity accounted investees 12 2,173 (276) 1,897
Itemsthat will be reclassified subsequel
to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of fore
operations (7,020) - (7,020)
Share of cash flow hedging reserwvi
equity accounted investees 12 2,489 (316) 2,173
(2,358 (592 (2,950
201¢
Other comprehensive incom
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss
Revaluation of proper 9 5,63( (1,407 4,22:
Share of asset revaluation reservi
equity accounted investees 12 (6,000) 1,280 (4,720)
(370 127, (497,
Items that will be reclassified subseque
to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of fore
operations (9,078) - (9,078)
Exchange differences realised on disp 46 - 46
(9,032 - (9,032
Share of cash flow hedging reserwvi
equity accounted investees 12 2,390 (510) 1,880
(6,642 (510 (7,152
(7,012 (637, (7,649
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29 Acquisition of subsidiary

Business Combination in 2014

On 2 December 2014, the Group acquired the remaining 50%siniaré&rand Hotel Group

(“GHG") through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Tuan Sing Realtdfe Pty Limited for a cash
consideration of A$125,752,000 (equivalent to S$140,373,000). The Groupugievield a 50%

interest in GHG and had equity-accounted for the invegtm&HG owns two hotel properties in
Australia, namely, Grand Hyatt Melbourne and Hyatt Regéterth. With this acquisition, GHG
has since become wholly owned by the Group.

GHG comprises Grand Hotel Trust and its controlled iestifcollectively known as “GHT”) and
Grand Hotel Company Limited and its controlled entitieslléctively known as “GHC”). The
units in GHT are stapled to the shares in GHC.

An amount of $26,924,000 was recognised as negative goodwilifeinded in other operating
income in profit or loss), being the excess of the faiu® of the net assets acquired over the
purchase consideration.

Between 2 December 2014 to 31 December 2014, the acquiredssusorgributed revenue of
$12,023,000 and profit of $1,574,000 to the Group’s results. Had the $sisiombination taken

place at the beginning of the year, the Group’s revenu¢h®ryear would have increased by
$145,436,000 and the Group’s profit for the year would have iresldas$11,833,000.

Business Combination in 2013

On 1 October 2013, the Group acquired 100% of the issued sapital of Robinson Point
Limited which legally and beneficially holds 100% of theumsd share capital of 39 Robinson
Road Pte Ltd, for a consideration of $171,577,000.

Robinson Point Limited is a private company limited byarsl incorporated in Mauritius.
39 Robinson Road Pte Ltd is a private company limited byeshincorporated in Singapore and is
the registered, legal and beneficial owner of a building kresvRobinson Point located within the
Central Business District of Singapore.

An amount of $802,000 was recognised as negative goodwill (ahdiéacin other operating
income in profit or loss) being the excess of the falueaf the net identifiable assets acquired
over the purchase consideration.

Between 1 October and 31 December 2013, the acquired busiresm#teibuted revenue of
$3,196,000 and profit of $1,052,000. If the business combinatiorakad place at the beginning
of 2013, the Group’s revenue for that year would have inaldap&12,785,000 and the Group’s
profit for that year would have increased by $2,711,000.
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Fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed atdteeof acquisition

201¢ 201z
$'000 $'000

Current assets
Cash andank balance 38,05¢ 70¢
Trade and other receivab 13,941 1,08(
Inventorie: 771 -
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipm 414,041 -
Investmeniproperies 253,32 350,00(
Deferred tax asse 2,20¢ -
Current liabilities
Trade and other payab (28,802) (3,993
Income tax payab 173 -
Non-current liabilities
Long term borrowinc (358,259 (175,417
Deferred tax liabilitie (115) -
Other nor-current liabilitie: (400 -
Total net identified assets at fair valut 334,594 172,37¢
Fair value oamount previously equity account

for as a joint venture (167,297) -
Consideratiorpaic (140,33) (171,57
Negative goodwill 26,924 80z

Acquisition-related costs

Acquisition-related costs of $17,759,000 (2013: $403,000) had beendedclfrom the
consideration paid and were recognised as “other operajirggnees” in profit or loss. Stamp duty
formed the bulk of the acquisition-related costs in 2014.

Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiary

201¢ 2012

$'00C $'00C
Consideration pa 140,37¢< 171,577
Less: Cash arbank balancs acquires (38,056 (709
Net cash outflow on acquisiti 102,317 170,86€&
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30 Significant related party transactions

In addition to the related party transactions disetl elsewhere in the financial statements, thepsrou
has the following significant related party transawi with the major shareholders, associates and
the Directors of the Company and their associates:

Group

201¢ 201z

$00C $00C
Transactions with major shareholders
Sale of products and services rend 9,847 4,65:
Sale of a development prope 78% -
Rental incom 1,34« 1,31(
Interest incom 351 36¢
Purchase of produc (46,058 (65,308
Rental expens - (455;
Transactions with associate
Management fee incor 18C 18C
Rental incom 344 301
Interest incom 28 112
Purchase of produc (100 (10)
Transactions with Directors of the Company and their

associates

Sale of development properti 1,03t 21¢
Rental incom - 33

The Company’s major shareholder is Nuri HoldingsR&) Ltd (“Nuri”), incorporated in Singapore.
Related party transactions with major shareholder te transactions with the companies in which
the shareholders of Nuri and their family membengelea controlling interest in. The related party
transactions are entered into in the normal coufsmisiness based on terms agreed between the
parties.

At the end of the reporting year, the Group had camanits to lease certain commercial properties
to Nuri, and associates of the Group. These nonetlable operating leases had remaining lease
terms of between 1 to 25 months (2013: 1 to 25 monthglurd-minimum lease receivables under
these leases not recognised as receivables at tloé each reporting period were as follows:

Commitment with related parties

Group
201¢ 201¢
$'000 $'000
Commitment with major shareholders
Sale of development propert 3,49¢ 2,93:
Operating lease
- Within one yes 99¢ 2,09¢
- After one year but not more than five ye 1,572 73¢€
- After five year: 3,212 -
5,782 2,833
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31

Remuneration of directors and key management personnel

Group
201¢ 201z
$00C $00C
Shor-term benefits and fe 3,64¢ 3,72¢
Pos-employment benefits (defined contribution p 55 79
3,703 3,807
Commitments
Capital commitments
Group
201¢ 201z
$00C $00C
Development aninvestment properties expenditure contra
for but not provided in the financial statements 165,804 228,817
Capital expenditure contracted tbut not provide
in the financial statements 1,676 -
Share of commitments of equ-accounted investe:
- Capital expenditure contracted tbut not provide
in the financial statements 1,890 3,132

Operating lease commitments - where the Group is a lessor

The Group entered into commercial property leaseats anmvestment property portfolio, consisting of
commercial and industrial buildings under non-cancellablerating lease agreements. The leases
have varying terms, escalation clauses and renaeglgbr As at the end of the reporting period,
these non-cancellable leases had remaining leass tdrbetween one and three years (2013: one
and three years).

The future minimum lease receivables under non-cattelloperating leases contracted for at the
end of each reporting period but not recognised asvedales were as follows:

Group
201¢ 201c
$'000 $'000
Within one yes 13,42 15,59¢
After one year but not more than five ye 24,63° 10,59¢
After five year: 3,21. 437
41,27 26,62«
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32

Operating lease commitments - where the Group is a lessee

The Group leases office premises, warehouse, andshapk under non-cancellable operating lease
agreements. The leases have varying terms andaknghts. They are generally negotiated for a
term of 1 to 2 years and rentals are generally fimedhe same periods. Payment recognised as an
expense during the year was $503,000 (2013: $608,000).

The future minimum lease payables under non-canceligi@mting leases contracted for at the end
of the reporting period but not recognised as liaéslitvere as follows:

Group
201¢ 201z
$'000 $'000
Within one yes 75C 75z
After one year but not more than five ye 42% 1,43¢
1,17: 2,18

Derivative financial instrument

SP Corp, a listed subsidiary of the Group, utilisedency derivatives to hedge significant future
transactions and cash flows. At the end of the tigpryear, the total notional amount of
outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts tolwtiie Group was committed were as follows:

Group
201« 201z
$'000 $'000
Foreign currency forward contra 11,40( 11,40(

In 2014 and 2013, the change in the fair value ofhremging currency derivative was insignificant
and hence its amount was not charged to profitss: lo

Contingent liabilities

Group Company
201« 201z 201« 201z
$'00C $'00C $'00C $'00C
Guarantees given bank: in respect obanl facilities
utilised by subsidiaries - - 837,879 869,718

In 2013, the Group recognised an amount of cumulativedasisits associate, Pan-West, equivalent
to the Group’s share of corporate guarantees given tarcédaks to secure credit facilities of
Pan-West and its subsidiary [note 12]. As the liabilitiesl been recognised, there were no
contingent liabilities as at the reporting date.
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33 Financial risk management

Financial risk management policies and objectives

The Group has documented financial risk management polajpesoved by the Board of
Directors. The policies consist of guidelines and rutesdentify and manage periodically
significant risks that might affect the achievement of bssinebjectives, outputs, projects or
operating processes at the Group, subsidiary or businesseueit Guidelines and rules are
reviewed annually by the Group to ensure that they rened@vant. The Group’s overall risk
management program seeks to minimise potentially adviestseon financial performance of the
Group.

The Group’s risk management process is carried out ire thhases, i.e. identification and

assessment of risks, formulation and implementatibrrigk treatment, and monitoring and

reporting of risk profile. The key risks relating to fileéal management include foreign exchange
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derwatfinancial instruments and investing cash in
excess of short-term operational requirement.

Factors behind financial risks

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of finahcisks — market risk (including currency
risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit regkd liquidity risk. The Group seeks to minimise
potentially adverse effects arising from the unpredictghifithe financial markets on the Group’s
financial performance.

The Group’s financial instruments comprise loans and tongs, cash and liquid resources, trade
and other receivables, trade and other payables thatdwrestly from its operations. The Group
manages its exposure to currency and interest rate biiskssing a variety of techniques and
instruments as described in note 33(a) and 33(b) to thecial statements.

Natural hedging is preferred by matching assets anditie®ibf the same currency. Derivative
financial instruments are only used where it is necessameduce the Group’s exposure to
fluctuations in foreign exchange and interest rates oorigply with covenants imposed by banks.
While these financial instruments are subject to riskhafnge in market rates subsequent to their
acquisition, such changes are generally offset by opposetsebn the items being hedged. The
Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instrugnfmtspeculative purposes. The Group
is not exposed to any equity-price risk.

There has been no major change to the Group's exposuraéditiencial risks or the manner in

which it manages and measures the risk. Market risksexp® are measured using sensitivity
analyses indicated in note 33(a) and note 33(b) to the falastatements.

-87-



Classification of financial instruments

The table below sets out the financial instruments agnldeof the reporting year:

Group Company
201¢ 201z 201¢ 201z
$00C $00C $00C $00C
Financial asset
Loans and receivables (includ
cash and bank balances) 336,336 338,690 366,670 300,645

Financial liabilities

Loans and payable amortised co:  1,447754 994,58t 403,75¢ 322,13l
Financial guarantee contra - - 13,49: 20,53¢
1,447754 994,58 417,24¢ 342,66!

(&) Currency risk

The Group’s subsidiaries operate mainly in Singapore, Alistr China, Malaysia and

Indonesia. As for its associates, GulTech operateslyriai©hina and Singapore; Pan-West
operates mainly in Singapore and Malaysia. Entitiegshm Group regularly transact in
currencies other than their respective functional curesn¢foreign currencies”) such as the
Singapore dollar (*SGD”), Australian dollar (*AUD”), Unite States dollar (“‘USD”) and

Malaysian Ringgit (‘“MYR”). Currency risk arises wherarnsactions are denominated in
foreign currencies.

In addition, the Group is exposed to currency translatiek on the net assets in foreign
operations mainly in Australia and China. As far assipds, the Group relies on natural
hedges of matching foreign assets and liabilities of theesairrency.

SP Corp, a listed subsidiary of the Group, uses forwagddiorexchange contracts to protect
against the effect of volatility in foreign currency excpe rates on foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities arising in the normalse of business. SP Corp enters into
forward exchange contracts with maturities of less thaive months. Further details on the
forward exchange contracts are disclosed in note 31 tantecfal statements.

The Group does not enter into currency options and does edbnvegard foreign exchange
contracts for speculative trading purposes.
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Currency risk exposure

At the end of the reporting year, the carrying amountsnohetary assets and monetary
liabilities denominated in currencies other than the res@eeintities’ functional currencies
were as follows:

SGC usD AUD Others
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Group
At 31 December 201
Financial asset
Cash and bank balan: 2,59¢ 6,171 1,12z 9
Trade and other receivabl 72 1,56: - 85
2,6€7 7,73¢ 1,12: 94
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payab (18,090 (5,491 - -
Net financial (liabilities)/ asset: (15,423 2,24: 1,12z 94
Less:
Forward foreign exchange contracts 11,400 - - -
Net currency exposurt (4,023 2,24 1,127 94
At 31 December 201
Financial asset
Cashand bank balanc 2,66: 11,01( 11,83¢ 68
Trade and other receivabl 28 2,76¢ 38C 50
2,69( 13,77¢ 12,21¢ 11¢
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payab (14,574 (7,108 - (2)
Net financial (liabilities)/asset: (11,884 6,66¢ 12,21¢ 11€
Less:
Forward foreign exchange contracts 11,400 - - -
Net currency exposurt (484, 6,66¢ 12,21¢ 11€

At the end of the reporting year, the carrying amountsnohetary assets and monetary
liabilities denominated in currencies other than the Compgafwyictional currency were as
follows:

2014 2012

AUD MYR AUD MYR

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Company
Financial asset
Amounts due from subsidiar - 434 - 182
Financial liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiar (228 - (230 -
Net currency exposurt (228 434 (230 182
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Sensitivity analysis for currency risk

The following table details the sensitivity to a 10% inceédecrease in the relevant foreign
currencies against the functional currency of each geotipy. 10% is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to kegnagement personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible chafogeign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign cayyethenominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the period end for%a @ldange in foreign currency rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes external loans as welloass to foreign operations within the
Group where they gave rise to an impact on the Group’s prdfiiss and/or equity.

If the relevant foreign currency weakens by 10% agaiestuthctional currency of each group
entity, profit or loss may increase (decrease) by:

SGD USDh AUD Others
201«  201:  201¢ 201z 201¢ 201 201¢  201c
$00C $00C $00C $00C $00C $00C $00C $00C

Group
Profit or los: 40z 48 (224 (667 (112, (1,222 (9) (12)

Company

Profit or loss - - - - 23 23 (43) (18)

The strengthening of the relevant foreign currency agdiestfunctional currency of each
group entity at the end of the reporting year would havketha equal but opposite effect on
the above currencies to the amounts shown above, on thehzsidl other variables remain
constant.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that futaessh flows of a financial instrument may
fluctuate because of changes in interest rates in the indf@ value interest rate risk is the
risk that the fair value of a financial instrumerdyriluctuate due to such changes.

The Group’s exposure to cash flow interest rate risleamsainly from bank borrowings. The
Group aims to optimise net interest cost and to redueihitglin the finance cost. The Group
borrows mainly variable rate debts with varying tenurAssummary of the Group’s interest-
bearing financial instruments is disclosed in note 33(dhese financial statements.

Other than those disclosed below, the Group does not usetderifiaancial instruments to
hedge fluctuations in interest rates for its borrowings.
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Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk

The sensitivity analysis below is based on the exposunetdrest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting year and assumeshe change took place at the
beginning of the financial year and was held constant ¢fvaut the reporting year. The
magnitude represents the Group’s assessment of the likely raniv@minterest rates under
normal economic conditions.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher or lomgra#l other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit after tax would decreassencrease by $12,438,000
(2013: decrease or increase by $9,086,000).

The Company’s profit or loss was not affected by changegerest rates as the Company did
not have any borrowings or inter-company loans that arargble rates.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty willfaddt on its contractual obligations
resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group rdgpeed a policy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties as a mean of mitigating ritke of financial loss from such
defaults. Credit risk on cash and bank balances andatieevfinancial instrument is limited
as these balances are placed with or transactednsiitutions of repute. The Group manages
these risks by monitoring credit worthiness and limiting dggregate use to any individual
counterparty. The Group does not expect to incur materedit losses on its financial
instruments.

There was no significant concentration of credit risk wébpect to trade receivables at the
end of the reporting year because of the Group’s large nuoflmerstomers who are in turn
geographically dispersed and from a fairly diverse spectofirndustries. The carrying
amount of financial assets recorded in the finant@&kements, grossed up for any allowances
for losses, represents the Group’s maximum exposure tib gs&dvithout taking into account
of the value of any collateral obtained and the guarangeeen by the Group to banks in
respect of bank facilities utilised by an associate.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk in the eventctimmterparties fail to
perform their obligations as of the end of the reporting yearelation to each class of
recognised financial assets is the carrying amount skthgsets as indicated in the statement
of financial position.
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The credit risk for trade receivables after allowafocedoubtful receivables was as follows:

Group
201¢ 201:
$'000 $'000
By geographical are:
Singapor 26,76 23,46(
Australie 4,827 -
Chine 4,23( 997
Malaysie 1,94: 3,601
Indonesii 12,78¢ 11,64¢
USA 152 -
Other ASEAN countrie 62F 69t
Other: 59¢ 401
51,92¢ 40,80(
By type of customer:
Related parties 4,001 1,013
Nor-related partie 47 92k 39,78"
51,92¢ 40,80(
By industry sector
Property 5,212 3,693
Hotel 6,247 -
Industrial service 40,46 37,10°
51,92¢ 40,80(

Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficieash and borrowings with different
tenures. Due to the dynamic nature of the businesses the Gramptihe Group aims at
maintaining flexibility in funding and keeping adequate cortedicredit facilities available.

Analysis for liquidity and interest risk - non-derivative finandialbilities

The following tables detail the effective annual interedes and the remaining contractual
maturity for non-derivative financial liabilities at the epicthe reporting year.

The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscountedovesioff financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group and Company caquired to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows. Thastthent column represents possible
future cash flow attributable to the instruments includethe maturity analysis which is not
included in the carrying amount of the financial liailibon the statements of financial
position.
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On

demand
Effective or less  Within Within Over
interest than 1 1to2 2to5 5
Rate year years years years Adjustment Total
% $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Group
31 December 2014
Non-interest bearing - 102,458 423 - - - 102,881
Fixed interest rate
instruments 4.5 3,600 3,600 90,021 - (17,946) 79,275
Variable interest rate
instruments 1.1-35 210,650 687,273 384,102 7,610 (24,037) 1,265,598
316,708 691,296 474,123 7,610 (41,983) 1,447,754
31 December 2013
Non-interest bearing - 76,932 - - - - 76,932
Finance lease liability
(fixed rate) 6.4 2 - - - - 2
Variable interest rate
instruments 1.1-1.9 164,394 258,792 518,482 9,005 (33,019) 917,654
241,328 258,792 518,482 9,005 (33,019) 994,588
Company
31 December 2014
Non-interest bearing - 324,479 - - - - 324,479
Fixed interest rate
instruments 4.5 3,600 3,600 90,021 - (17,946) 79,275
Financial guarantee
contracts - 837,879 - - - (824,387) 13,492
1,165,958 3,600 90,021 - (842,333) 417,246
31 December 2013
Non-interest bearing - 322,130 - - - - 322,130
Financial guarantee
contracts - 869,718 - - - (849,180) 20,538
1,191,848 - - - (849,180) 342,668

At the end of the reporting year, the maximum amountttf@Company could be forced to
settle under the financial guarantee contracts if thegfidranteed amounts were claimed by
the counterparty to the various guarantees, was $837,879,000 (2013:18388%)). The
earliest time that a guarantee could be called i@naswhen the guarantee is claimed by the
counterparty. Based on the expectations at the endisofréporting year, the Company
considered that it was more likely than not that no amhawuld be payable under the
arrangement. However, this estimate was subject togehdepending on the probability of
the counterparty claiming under the guarantee which imetibn of the likelihood that the
financial receivables held by the counterparty suffer tiesses.

As at the end of the reporting year, the Group’s totalgabibn on guarantees in connection

with Pan-West's bank facilities amounted to $5,853,000 (201353%80). The earliest time
that a guarantee could be called is as and when thargearis claimed by the counterparty.
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Analysis for liquidity and interest risk - non-derivative financasets

The following tables detail the effective annual interesés and the expected maturity for
non-derivative financial assets at the end of the regpytear. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of theciadaassets including interest that
will be earned on those assets except where the Groughar@ompany anticipate that the
cash flow will occur in a different year. The adjusttneolumn represents the possible future
cash flows attributable to the instrument included in théuntg analysis which are not
included in the carrying amount of the financial asset the statements of financial position.

Group

31 December 2014

Non-interest bearing

Variable interest
rate instruments

Fixed interest rate
instruments

31 December 2013

Non-interest bearing

Variable interest
rate instruments

Fixed interest rate
Instruments

Company

31 December 2014
Non-interest bearing

31 December 2013
Non-interest bearing

On
demand
Effective orless  Within Within Over
interest than 1 lto2 2to5 5
rate year years years years Adjustment Total
% $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
- 85,128 2,499 - 10 - 87,637
0.2-1.3 27,916 - - - (11) 27,905
0.3-4.7 221,156 - - - (362) 220,794
334,200 2,499 - 10 (373) 336,336
- 85,746 2,884 - 88,630
0.1-35 9,028 - 9,028
0.3-5.0 176,642 2,383 62,548 (541) 241,032
271,416 5,267 62,548 - (541) 338,690
- 366,670 - - - - 366,670
- 300,645 - - 300,645
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Analysis for liquidity risk - derivative financial instruments

The following table details a liquidity analysis for dative financial instruments the Group
had entered into at the end of the reporting year. table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted net cash outflows on the derivative instruntieatssettle on a net basis and the
undiscounted gross inflows on those derivatives that requass settlement.

On demand Within Within Over

orlessthan 1to2 2t0o5 5
1lyear years years years Adjustment Total
$00C $00C $00C  $00C $00C ¢$'00C
Group
31 December 201
Gross settle
Foreign exchang
forward contracts (106) - - - - (106)
(10€) - - - - (10€)
31 December 201
Gross settle
Foreign exchang
forward contracts (80) - - - - (80)
(80) - - - - (80)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilitie

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivaleaide tand other receivables and payables,
provisions and other liabilities approximated their respedtirevalues due to their relative
short-term maturity.

The fair values of financial assets and finandailities are determined as follows:

» the fair value of financial assets and financial ligéib8 with standard terms and conditions
and traded on active liquid markets are determined wfdrence to quoted market prices;

» the fair value of other financial assets and finandigbilities (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined in accordance with genemattgpted pricing models based
on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observaistent market transactions
and dealer quotes for similar instruments; and

» the fair value of derivative instruments are calculaisthg quoted prices. Where such
prices are not available, discounted cash flow analgsissed, based on the applicable
yield curve of the duration of the instruments for non-opticterivatives, and option
pricing models for optional derivatives.

The fair value of other classes of financial asaets liabilities are disclosed in the respective
notes to the financial statements.
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The Group classifies fair value measurements using avédire hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.faifhvalue hierarchy has the
following levels:

* Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets fottichd assets or liabilities;

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included withivel & that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)rairectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

* Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are hatsed on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

At the end of each reporting year, the Group and the Congpantgrest rate swap was
measured based on Level 2.

Capital risk

In managing capital, the Group’s objectives are to safegtgmability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain an optimal capital structuressto grovide appropriate returns to
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders througimgits products and services at
levels commensurate with the level of risks it is expaeed

The capital structure of the Group consists of loans amdowings disclosed in note 13,
issued capital, reserves and retained earnings disclasedtés 18 and 19. In order to
maintain or achieve an optimal capital structure, theu@may issue new shares, obtain new
borrowings, sell assets to reduce borrowings, pay or tati@smount of dividend payment or
return capital to shareholders. The Group’s overall stratggins unchanged from the prior
years.

The Group monitors capital risks through measuring the Gsogpdss gearing and net
gearing. The Group’s gross gearing is calculated ashlotabwings divided by total equity,
whilst net gearing is calculated as net borrowings dividetbtay equity. Net borrowings are
calculated as total borrowings as disclosed in notee$8,dash and bank balances as disclosed
in note 5 to the financial statements.

Group
201« 201z
$00C $00C
Total borrowing 1,344,87. 917,65t
Total equity 813,04 759,20!
Gross gearing (times 1.6 1.21
Net borrowing 1,092,60: 640,78«
Total equity 813,04 759,20!
Net gearing (times) 1.3 0.8¢
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34 Listing of significant subsidiaries

Information relating to the significant subsidiaries in @r@up is given below:

Effective
Country of  equity interest
Incorporation/ & voting

Name of company Note Principal activities establishment power held by
the Group
201¢  201:
% %
Significant subsidiaries directly held by the Comg
Asiaview Properties Pte L Property investmer Singapor 10c¢ 10C
Asplenium Land Pte. Lt Property developmel Singapor 10cC 10C
Clerodendrum Land Pte. L Property developmel Singapor 10c¢ 10C
Oxley Development Pte L Property investme Singapor 10cC 10C
SP Corporation Limite Investment holdin Singapor 80.2 80.2
Superluck Properties Pte L Property investme Singapor 10cC 10C

Significant subsidiaries indirectly held by the Comy

39 Robinson Road Pte. L Property investmer Singapor 10cC 10C
Globaltraco International Pte 1 Distribution of tyre: Singapor 80.2 80.2
Grand Hotel Grou (i) Propery investmer Australic 10cC 50
Habitat Properties (Shanghai) 1 (i)  Property developmel Chine 10cC 10C
Shelford Properties Pte L Property developme Singapor 10cC 10C

SP Resources International Pte. Trading of industria Singapor 80.2 80.2

products
Notes
0] Audited by overseas practices of Delofmiche Tohmatsu Limited. As from 2 December 2@@#nd Hotel Group became

wholly-owned by the Group following its acquisitiofithe remaining 50% interest in GHG (note 29).
(i) Audited by overseas practices of Deloitte Tha Tohmatsu Limited

All subsidiaries in Singapore are audited by Deloitte &dhe LLP, Singapore.
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35 Listing of significant associates and joint venture

36

Associates are those in which the Group has significalmieimée, but not control in the operating
and financial policy decisions. Joint venture is antyimiwhich the Group has joint control in the
strategic financial and operating decisions.

Information relating to the significant associates jant venture in the Group is given below:

Effective
Country equity interest
Principal of & voting
Name of company Note activities incorporation  power held by
the Group
201  201:
% %
Grand Hotel Grou (i)  Propery Australie 10C 50
investment
Gul Technologies Singapore L (i)  Manufactur Singapor 44t 43.:
of printed

circuit boards

Notes

@ Audited by overseas practices of Deloitte Tleid@ ohmatsu Limited. As from 2 December 2014, Gb#@ame wholly-owned
by the Group (note 29).

(i) Audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, Singaporekisted on the Singapore Stock Exchange up tilld8uary 2013.

Subsequent event

On 24 October 2014, the Group terminated the services of dive cantractor for Seletar Park
Residence ("Project") for unsatisfactory performanceaaliéd for the performance bond issued
by a bank which the High Court has awarded in the Groap@ulr. The release of the sum by the
bank is now pending the outcome of the contractor’s appealsagam High Court decision.
Subsequent to the year-end, the contractor has filedatgidication application for their final
payment claim. The Group has since submitted their respamgd will resist the contractor’s
application vigorously.

The Group is of the view that it has a reasonably strasg @ the calling of the performance
bond and a reasonable chance of prevailing at arbitratiosasjpect of the termination of the
contractor and defeating the contractor’'s adjudicationgadiogs. Accordingly, no cost was
provided for as at 31 December 2014 in relation to such tatimm A new contractor has since
been appointed for this project.
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